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March 3 1,2007 

To the Honorable Mayor, Members of the City Commission, 
and Citizens of the City of Dunedin, Florida 

We hereby issue the comprehensive annual financial report of the City of Dunedin, Florida for the 
fiscal year ended September 30.2006. This report presents a completc set of financial statements 
presented in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and audited in 
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards by a firm of licensed certified public 
accountants. 

The report consists of management's representations concerning the finances of the City ofDunedin, 
Florida (the "City"). Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for ti te cotnpleteness 
and reliability of all of the information presented in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for 
making these representations, the City's management team has established a comprehensive internal 
control framework that i s  designed both to protect the government's assets fi-0111 loss, then, or misuse 
and to compile sufficient reliable information for the presentation of the City's financial statements 
in conformity with GAAP. Because the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, 
the Cj ty's comprehensive framework of internal controls has been designed io provide reasonable 
rather than absolute assurance that the financial statements wiIl be free horn nlatmial misstatement. 
As management, we assert that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this financial report is 
coniplete and reliable in all material respects. 

The City's financial statements have been audited by Davidson, Jamieson & Cristini, P.L.. a firm of 
licensed certified public accountants. The goal of the independent audit was to provide reasonable 
assurance that the financial statements of the City for the fiscal year ended September 30,2006, are 
free of material misstatement. The independent audit involved examining, on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial slatements; assessing the accounting 
principles uwd and significant estimates made by management; and evaluating the overall financial 
statement presentation. The independent auditor concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a 
reasonable basis for rendering an unqualified upitlion that the City's financial statements for the 
fiscal year ended September 30, 2004, are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP. The 
independent auditor's report is presented as the first component of the financial section of this report. 

vii 



The independent audit of the financial statements of the City was a part of a broader, federally 
mandated Single Audit designed to meet the special needs of federal grantor agencies. The standards 
governing Single Audit engagements require the independent auditor to report not only on the fair 
presentation of the financial statements, but also on the audited government's internal control and 
compliance with legal requirements, with special emphasis on internal controls and legal 
requirements involving the administration of federal awards. These reports are available in the 
City's separately issued Single Audit Report. 

GAAP require that management provide a narrative introduction. overview, and analysis to 
accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management's Discussion and Analysis 
(MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement MD&A and should be read in 
conjunction with it. The City's MD&A can be found immediately following the report of the 
independent auditors. 

Profile of the Government 

The City incorporated in June 1 899, is located in the western part of the state, bordering the north 
side of Clearwater, Florida. The City currently occupies a land area of 25 square miles and serves a 
population of approximately 37,000. The City is empowered to levy a property tax on both real and 
personal properties located within its boundaries. It also is empowered by state statute to extend its 
corporate limits by annexation, which occurs periodically when deemed appropriate by the governing 
council. 

The City operates under the commission-manager form of government. Policy-making and 
legislative authority are vested in a governing body consisting of the mayor and four commissioners. 
The City Commission is responsible, among other things, for passing ordinances, adopting the 
budget, appointing committees, and hiring the city manager, city clerk, independent auditor and 
attorney. The city manager is responsible for carrying out the policies and ordinances of the City 
Commission, for overseeing the day-to-day operations of the government, arid for appointing the 
heads of the various dqxartments. The City Cornn~ission is elected on a non-partisan basis. 
Commission members, to include the mayor, serve three-year staggered terms, with up to two 
commission members elected every year. The mayor and the City Commission members are elected 
at large. 

The City provides a full range of services, including contracted Iaw enforcement and fire protection; 
the construction and maintenance of highways, streets, and other infrastructure; library, parks and 
recreation, marina, golf course, spring training facilities (for the Toronto Blue Jays), water and 
sewer, reclaimed water and solid waste. The City also has a Community Redevelopment Agency 
which is reported within the City's financial statements. 

The annual budget serves as the foundation for the City's financial planning and control. All 
departments of the City are required to submit requests for appropriation to the City's manager in 
April of each year. The manager uses these requests as a starting point for developing a proposed 



budget. The manager will present the proposed budget to the City Commission at the first meeting 
in July. The proposed budget will then be reviewed and discussed at workshops prior to final 
adoption. 'The City Commission is required to hold two (2) public hearings on the proposed budget 
and to adopt a finat budget by no later than September 30, the close of the City's fiscal year. The 
appropriated budget is prepared by hnd, function (e.g., public safety), and department (e.g., fire). 
Department heads may make transfers of appropriations within a department and fund. Transfers of 
appropriations between funds, however, require the special approval of the City Commission. 
Budget-to-actual comparisons are provided in this report for each individual governmental fund for 
which an appropriated annual budget has been adopted. For the general fund, this comparison is 
presented on page B-8 as part of the basic financial statements for the governmental funds. For 
governmental funds, other than the general fund, with appropriated annual budgets, this comparison 
is presented on pages B-9 and Dl I -- D24. 

Factors Affecting Financial Condition 

The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when it is 
considered from the broader perspective of the specific environment within which the City operates. 

Local economy. The economy of Dunedin is primarily dependent upon towisn~, services and 
retirement living. The City mainly consists of residential land uses (47%) and recreational land uses 
(28%). Industrial and commercial land uses comprise only one percent and four percent, respectively, 
of the City's land area. Major employers include Mease Hospital Dunedin, a medical complex, Coca- 
Cola North America, Mease Manor hc, (a retirement facility), the City of 1)unedin and the Pinellas 
County School System. The City has only one srnalI industrial park. The service industry (banking, 
retailing, personal servic-es, etc.) has risen significantly to meet the demands of the area's population. 

The City's total labor force was 19,037 people in December 2006. In that same month, unemployment 
for Pinellas County was 2.8%, and the unemployment rate for the City was 2.6%. 

The retirement population continues to influence the local economy- Thirty percent of Dunedin's 
residents were of retirement age (65 and over) in 2000. Dunedin has many retirement homes, 
condominiums and apartment complexes which accommodate retirees. More young families are 
moving into the City; therefore, the median age (which was 44.0 years of age in 2005) is continuing to 
decline. The local economy is also influenced during the wjnter months by a seasonal population of 
approximately 3,400 people. 

Per capita income in Pinellas County has increased by 35% between 1996 and 2005 (the most recent 
year for which this information is available) to $33,3 16. 



Long-term financial planning. St. Andrews Links golf course was purchased by the City in 
December 2002, and renovations since then continue to improve playing conditions and use by the 
public. In fiscal year 2005, the City Commission approved construction of a $9.8 million community 
center, which was completed in  the fall of 2006. Funding was obtained through issuance of $10 
million in Sales Tax Revenue Bonds. 

Cash management policies and practices. Cash balances during the year were invested in U.S. 
Government Securities, U.S. Government agency and instrumentality securities, Bank of America 
(checking) and the State Board of Administration investment pool. The maturities of the 
investments range from 23 days to 10 years, with an average maturity of .4 years. The City's average 
yield on investments (excluding pension funds) was 4.55 percent. 

Risk management. The Self-Insurance Fund is maintained as an Internal Service Fund and charges 
its operating costs annually anlong all City cost centers. The allocations are based on various 
exposure factors (i.e.; number of personnel, property values, etc.) along with past claims experience. 

The Cj ty utilizes this fund to self-insure its first $250,000 of  property damage per occurrence (except 
wind, hail, and named storms, which has a deductible of 5% of total location value per building, 
subject to a minimum of $500,000), and its first $250,000 of any employee work injury. The City 
also self-insures all auto liability and the majority of general liability losses, except for Dunedin 
recreation summer camp and St. Andrews Links Golf Course, where separate insurance policies are 
utilized. 

Pension and other post employment benefits. 

The Firefighters' Retirement Plan is a defined benefit plan established under Chapter 175 of Florida 
Statutes. 

All other qualified City employees hired before January 1,1996 participate in the Florida Retirement 
System Pension Plan which is administered by the State of Florida, Department of Administration, 
Division of Retirement. At September 30, 2006, the City contributed 9.85% of regular employee 
gross wages to the plan. 

All employees hired subsequent to December 3 1, 1995 who would qualify for participation in the 
Florida Retirement System participate in the City's defined contribution plan. The City's 
contribution rate is 10% of employee's gross wages. 

Additional information on the City's pension arrangements can be found on pages C-3 8 to C-45 in 
the notes to the financial statements. 
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The Honorable Mayor 
and City Commissioners 

City of Dunedin, Florida 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the govenmental activities, the business- 
type activities, each major fund, the budgetary comparisons for those major h d s ,  and the aggregate 
remaining fund information of the City of Dunedin, Florida, as of and for the year ended 
September 30, 2006, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in 
the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the City's management. 
Our responsibiiity is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America as established by the Auditing Standards Board of the American Institute of 
Certified Public Accountants and the standards applicab te to financial audits contained in 
Gnl~ernnrent Auditing Standards, issued by the Conlptroller General of the United States. Those 
standards require that we pIan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
the f nancial statements are fee of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test 
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the 
accounting principles used and the significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating 
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis 
for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly. in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major 
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Dunedin, Florida, as of 
September 30, 2006, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where 
applicable, thereof and the respective budgetary comparison for each major fund for the year then 
ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 



The Honorable Mayor 
and City Commission 

In accordance with Governmenr Auditing Standards, we have also issued ow report dated January 
22, 2007 on our consideration of the City of Dunedin, Florida's internal control over financial 
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, 
and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and 
not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That 
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standclrds 
and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit. 

The accompanying management's discussion and analysis on pages A-3 through A-15 is not a 
required part of the basic financial statements but is supplementary information required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board. We have applied certain limited procedures, which 
consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of management and 
presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information 
and express no opinion on it. 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements. The accompanying introductory section, 
com~bining dnd individual nonmajor fundfinancial statements and schedules, and statistical tables 
are presented for purposes of additional anatysis and are not a required part of the basic financial 
statements. The combining and individual nonmajorftsndflnancial statements and schedules have 
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, 
in our opinion, are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements 
taken as a whole. The introductory section and stutislical rubles have not been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we 
express no opinion on them. 



Management's Discussion and Analysis 

As management of the City of Dunedin, Florida (the "City"), we offer readers of the City's financial 
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the City's financial activities for the fiscal year 
ended September 30, 2006. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in 
conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal, which can 
be found on pages vii - x i  of this report. 

Financia1 Highlights 

The City's assets exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by $106,253,893 
()let assets). Of this amount, $26,038,477 (unrestricted net assets) may be used to meet the City's 
ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. 

The City's total net assets increased by $3,900,444 (3.8%). Net assets supporting governmental 
activities increased $4'9 16,584 (1 0.4%) and business-type activities net assets decreased $1,0 16,140 
(1 A%). 

On September 30,2006 the City's governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of 
$20,052,482, a decrease of $5,395,286. This decrease reflects completion of major construction of 
the City's new community center. 

On September 30, 2006, unallocated and undesignated fund balance for the general fund was 
$5,494,201 (2 1.6%) of total general fund expenditures. 

Overview of Financial: Statements 

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City's basic financial 
statements. The City's basic financial statements are comprised of three components: 1 ) 
government-wide financial statements, 2) h d  financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial 
statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic 
financial statements themselves. 

Government-wide financial statements 
The government-wideJnancid statements are designed to provide readers with a broad ovenriew of 
the City's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. 



The statement of net nssets presents information on all of the City's assets and liabilities, with the 
difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets 
may serve as a usefuI indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or 
deteriorating. 

The starentent of activities presents information showing how the City's net assets changed during 
the most recent fiscal year. A11 changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event 
giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash jlows. Thus, revenues and 
expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future 
fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave). 

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are 
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues ('governmental acrivicies) from other 
functions that are intended to recover all or a signj fication portion of their costs through user fees and 
charges (business-ppe activities). The governmental activities of the City include general 
government, public safety, transportation, economic development, and culture and recreation. The 
business-type activities of the City include solid waste, watedsewer utility, reclaimed water, 
stormwater utility, a marina operation, and a golf course. 

The government-wide financial statements include not only the City of Dunedin, Florida itself, but 
also the Community Redevelopment Agency (CRA) (known as theprinaar)rgovemmen t). Although 
the CRA is legally separate, it is financially accountable to the City. The City Commission also 
serves as the governing body for the CRA. 

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages B-2 and B-3 of this report. 

Fund financial statements 
Ajrnd is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have 
been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City, like other state and local 
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal 
requirements. All of the funds of the City can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, 
proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds. 

Govemrnental funds. Governmenfalfunds are used to account for essentially the same functions 
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike 
the government-wide fmancial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near- 
term inflows and outJlort)s of spend0 ble resources, as we1 1 as on balances of spenrlable resorrrces 
available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government's 
near-term financing requirements. 



Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial 
statements, it is usefuI to compare the information presented for govemmenfnlfunds with similar 
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By 
doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government's near-term 
financing decisions. Both the governmental h d  balance sheet and the governmental fund statement 
of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this 
comparison between governmental funds and governmental acrivifies . 

The City maintains sixteen individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the 
governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, 
and changes in fund balances for the General Fund and the One Cent Sales Tax Fund, both of which 
are considered to be major Funds. Data from the other fourteen governmental funds are combined 
into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these nonrnajor governmental 
funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report. 

The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for its governmental funds. Budgetary comparison 
statements are provided to demonstrate compliance with this budget. 

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages B-4 - B-9 of this report. 

Proprietaryfu~ads. The City maintains two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprisefinds are 
used to report the same functions presented as brcsiness-type activities in the government-wide 
financial statements. The City uses enterprise funds to account for its solid waste, waterhewer 
utility, reclaimed water, stormwater ntility, marina operations, and golf course. Internal service 
funds are used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the City's various functions. The 
City uses internal service funds to account for vehicle maintenance, building maintenance and self- 
insurance functions. All three services have been allocated between governmental and business-type 
activities based on contribution rates within the government-wide financial statements. 

Proprietary h d s  provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, 
only in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information on each 
enterprise activity, all of which are considered to be major h d s  of the City. Conversely, the three 
internal service funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation in the proprietary fund 
financial statements. Individual fund data for the internal service funds is provided in the form of 
contbinirig statements elsewhere in this report. 

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages B- 10 - B-15 of this report. 

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties 
outside the government. Fiduciary h d s  are trot reflected in the government-wide financial 
statement because the resources of those h d s  are not available to support the City's own programs. 
The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds. 

The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages B-16 - B- 17 of this report. 



Notes to the financial statements 
The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding ofthe data provided 
in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be 
found on pages C-1 - C-5 1 of this report. 

Other information 
The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with nomajor governmental funds, 
internal service funds and fiduciary funds are presented immediately following the Notes to the 
Financia1 Statements. Fund statements (combining and individual fund statements) can be found on 
pages D-1 - D-31 of this report. 

Government-wide Financial Analysis 

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial 
position. In the case of the City, assets exceeded liabilities by $106,253,893 at the close of the most 
recent fiscal year. 

By far the largest portion of the City's net assets (69.6%) reflects its investment in capital assets 
(e. g., land, buildings, infrastructure, improvements other than buildings, and machinery and 
equipment), less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is st111 outstanding. The City uses 
these capital assets to provide service to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for 
future spending. Although the City's investment in its capital assets is reported net ofrelated debt, it 
should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, 
since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. 



City of Dunedin, Florida's Net Assets 
September 30,2006 and 2005 

Governmental Business-type 
Activities Activities 

Assets: 

Cumnt md other assets 

Capital &sets 

Ibul assets 

Current and other liabil~ties 
Long-term liabilities outstanding: 

Due w ~ r h ~ n  one year 

Due In more than me ycar 

Total liabil~nes 

Net assets: 

Invested in capital assets, riel of 
related debt 

Unrestricted 

Total net assctr 

An additional portion of the City's net assets (5.9%) represents resources that are subject to external 
restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestrictednet assets $26,038,477 
(24.5%) may be used to meet the government's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. 

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City is able to report positive balances in all three categories 
of net assets, both for the City as a whole, as well as far its separate govenunental and business-type 
activities. The same situation held true for the prior fiscal year. 

Change in Net Assets 

The following table reflects the chunges in net assets for the fiscal years ended September 30,2006 
and 2005: 



City of Dunedin, Florida 
Net Assets Change 

September 30,2006 and 2005 

Governmental Business-Type 
Activities Activities Total 

Revenues: 

Program Revenues 

Charges for services 

-rating grants and contributions 

Capital grant$ and contributims 

General revenues: 

Property taxes 
Other taxes 

Grants and cm!nbumons not 

restricted lo  specific programs 

Other 

Total revenues 

Expenses: 

General government 

Public safety 
Physical environment 

Transportation 

Economic environment 

Culture and recreation 

Interest on long-tern debt 

Solid waste 
WalerlSewer utility 

Redaimed water 

Stormwater utility 

Manna 
GoH course 

Total expenses 

Encrease in net assets before tran-rs 

Inaease in net a M t s  

Net assets October 1 

Net assets September 30 



The City's total revenues increased $1,612,3 1 9 (3.1 %) while total expenses increased $69,767 
( 1 %) Applicable to total revenues, property bxes increased $1,182,471. charges for services 
increased $1,9 18,594 and capital grants and contributions decreased $2,26 1,028. As to total 
expenses, general grants increased $3 12,150, public safety increased $165,970, culture and 
recreation decreased $549,675, solid waste decreased $536,875 and utilities increased $293,296. 
The analysis below separately considers the operations of governmental and business-type 
activities in further detail, 

Governmental activities 

Total revenues for governmental activities increased $508,890 (1.7%). The major factors were: 

Capital grants and contributions decreased $2,289,182 (62.5%) reflecting principal grant funding 
received for the MLK recreation center in the prior year. 
Property taxes increased by $1,182,47 1 (1  5.4%) during the year primarily due to annexations, 
new construction and increases in property tax values. 
Charges for services increased $782,883 (16.5%). 

Total expenses increased $14,329 (. 1 %), reflecting increases in general government ($3 12,150), 
public safety ($165,970), interest on debt ($248,227) offset by a decrease in cuiture and recreation 
($549,675). 

Business-type activities. 

Total revenues for business-type activities increased $1,103,429 (5.3%), primarily in charges for 
services. 

Solid waste charges for services increased $269,794, utilities increased $434,573, and reclaimed 
water administration and stomwater increased $3 18,462 and $302,304, respectively. 

Total capital grants and contributions for business-type activities increased by $28,154. Of this 
total, waterlsewer utility impact fees, which are linked directly to new construction, increased 
$84,909 during the current fiscal year. Contributions from reclaimed water customers declined 
$16.755. 

Total expenses for business-type activities increased $54,838 (.2%). Water and sewer utility 
expenses and reclaimed water expenses increased $569,277 and $124,3 15 respectively, offset by a 
decline in solid waste expenses of $440,682. 

Financial Analysis of the City's Funds 

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to demonstrate compliance with finance-reIated legal 
requirements. 

Governmental funds. The focus of the City's governme~ltalfunds is to provide information on 
near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in 
assessing the City's financing requirements. In particular, unresenledfiind balance may serve as a 
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useful measure of a government's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. 

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City's governmental funds reported combined ending 
fund balances of $20,052,482, a decrease of $5,395,286 in comparison with the prior year reflecting 
completion of the new community center. Resewed fund balance indicates resources that are not 
available for new spending because they have already been committed 1 )  to liquidate contracts and 
purchase orders of the prior period ($36,198), 2) to purchase capital assets ($423,505), 3) to generate 
income to pay for future utility costs ($890,928), 4) to generate income to pay for perpetual care of 
the municipal cemetery ($180,3 691, and 6 )  for a variety of other restricted purposes ($2 19,169). The 
remainder of the fund balance ($1 8,302,3 13) is unreserved fund balance, which is available for 
spending at the City's discretion. 

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the end of the current fiscal year, 
unreserved fund balance of the General Fund was $7,283,320, while total fund balance reached was 
$8,555,299. As a measure of this fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare the unallocated and 
undesignated fund balance to total fund expenditures (including transfers out) which is 21.6% 

The fund balance of the City's General Fund increased by $71 1,092 (9.1 %) during the current fiscal 
year. Key factors in this increase are as follows: 

Total revenues increased $2,207,047 (9.3%) with the major impact coming from an increase in 
property tax revenue of $1,039,375. 

Total expenses increased $862,8 19 (3 -7%). increases by function were general government 
$353,923, public safety $1 92,597, and culture and recreation $3 12,160. 

The One Cent Sales Tax Fund has a total fund balance of $5,208,419, an increase during the year of 
$1,213,082. The major expenditures this fiscal year from the One Cent Sales Tax Fund were the 
South Douglas final phase ($206,4741, First Baptist Church ($600,000) and annual debt service 
($828,684). 

Proprietary funds. The City's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the 
government-wide financial statements, but in more detail. All of the City's enterprise funds are 
considered major funds: Solid Waste, WaterlSewer Utility, Reclaimed Water, Stormwater Utility, 
Marina, and Golf Course. 

Unrestricted net assets of the Solid Waste Fund at fiscal year-end amounted to $563,5 14, an increase 
from prior year of $27,034 (5.0%). Operating expenses decreased $440,682 (8.5%), primarily 
reflecting the costs experienced in fiscal year 2005 for contracted hurricane debris removal. 

Unrestricted net assets of the WaterlSewer Utility Fund at fiscal year-end amounted to $2,164,476. 
Total net assets decreased from the prior year by $1,302,104 (4.2 %). Operating revenues increased 
$482,633, while operating expenses increased $569,277. 



Unrestricted net assets of the Reclaimed Water Fund at fiscal year-end amounted to $1,354,288. 
Total net assets decreased during the year by $358,35 1 (2.3%). Operating revenues increased 
$3 18,47 1 ,  while operating expenses increased $124,3 15 as compared to prior year. Transfers in 
increased $352,000. 

Unrestricted net assets of the Stormwater Utility Fund at fiscal year-end amounted to $554,882. The 
increase in total net assets was $428,923 (10.8%). Operating revenues increased $300,921, while 
operating expenses increased $12,660. 

Unrestricted net assets of the Marina Fund at the end of the year amounted to $1 52,235. Total net 
assets at year-end were $1,733,574. Revenues increased $22,056 while expenses increased $8 1,2 13. 

The Golf Course Fund ended the year with net assets of $1,129,608, a slight decrease from prior year 
of $28,101. Revenues increased $88,254 with an increase in operating expenses of $85,691. 
Transfers in decreased $3 77,3 17. 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights 

As detailed on page B-8, actual total revenues exceeded budgetary estimates by $306,380 (1  -2%). 
Major components of this variance were increases in franchise taxes with $292,914, charges for 
services with $1 19,48 1, and investment earnings with $209,276, offset by a decrease of $356,904 in 
utility service taxes. Actual total expenditures were below budgetary estimates by $87,013 (0.4%). 

Capital Asset and Debt Administration 

Capital Assets. The City's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type 
activities as of September 30, 2006, amounted to $1 1 3,8 13,076 (net of accumulated depreciation). 
This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings, infrastructure, improvements other than 
buildings, and machinery and equipment. 

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following: 

The City continued the construction of the new $9.8 million Community Center. This project 
was campleted on December 1,2006. 

The City completed design of a new skateboard park at the Martin Luther King, Jr. recreation 
center. The City anticipates having the approximately $542,000 park constructed by June, 2007. 

The City began the process of designing various improvements to Edgewater Park, estimated at 
$450,000. 



City of Dunedin, Florida's Capital Assets (net of depreciation) 
September 30,2006 and 2005 

Governmental 
Activities 

2006 2005 
Land % 9,979,515 % 6,079,515 

Buildings 19,629,369 20,670,050 

Infrastructure 83 1,250 848,750 

Improvements other than buildings I 1,714,808 I 1 ,M7,486 

Machinery and equipnlent 5,451.131 5,354,368 

Construction in progress 8.646,463 1.161.950 

Total 556352.536 W U  

Business-type 
Activities 

Additional information on the City's capital assets can be found in note IV.A.4 on pages C-19 - 
C-24 of thi s report. 

Debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, the City had total debt outstanding of $37,885,141. Of 
this amount, there was $91 1,361 in capital leases and $629,795 in special assessment debt for which 
the City is liable in the event of default by the property owners subject to the assessment. The 
remainder of the City's debt, $36,343,985 represented bonds secured by specified revenue sources 
(i. e.,  revenue bonds). 

City of Dunedin, Florida's Outstanding Debt 
September 30,2006 and 2005 

Governmental 
Activities 

Business- type 
Activities 

Capital Leases 

Special assessment debt with 
government a 1 commitment 

Revenue bonds 

Total 



In the current fiscal year, fhe City's debt decreased by $3,2 1 1,9 18 (7.8%), primarily reflecting debt 
principal payments. 

The City's Financial Management Policies provide the following limits for the amount of debt the 
City may issue: 

The City's overall outstanding ratio of total annual general government debt service exclusive of 
enterprise fund. internal service fund and special assessment debt service to total annual genera1 
government revenue shall not exceed 12.5%; the City's current ratio is 6.65%. 
The City's maximum ratio of outstanding capital debt to the property tax base shall not exceed 
20%; the Civ 's current ratio is 1.9% 
The City's use of revenue bonds may be 100% of total debt; the Ciwk current ratio is 95.9%. 

Additional information on the City's long-term debt can be found in note W.B on pages C-2G - C-38 
of this report. 

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates 

The unemployment rate for the City of Dunedin for December 2006 was 2.6Y0, a dccrease of 
1 .O% from a year ago. The rate for Pinellas County for December 2006 was 2.8%. 

* The City is substantially built out thereby minimizing any major growth impacts. 

These factors were conndered in preparing the City's budget for fiscal ycat 2007. 

The City's elected and appointed officials considered many factors when setting the fiscal year 
2006-07 budget, including tax rates and fees that will be charged for the business-type activities. 

As a result of the rate study completed in fiscal year 2006 for the Water and Seww Fund, an 
additional 5.1 5% rate increase will occur in fiscal 2007, over the previously approved increase. 

Current property tax revenues are based on the current millage rate of 4,425. Ths rate is 1 7.3% 
less than it was in fiscal year 1994-5 when it was 5.350 mills. Property tax revenues, franchise 
fees, utiliry taxes and available cash rcscrves will be used to fund the current programs in fiscal 
year 2007. 

Request for Information 

This financial rcport is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Dunedin, Florida's 
finances for all those with an interest in the City's finances. Questions concerning any of the 
information provided in this report or requests for additional financial infomation should be 
addressed to M. Earl Sanders, CPA, Finance Director, City of Dunedin, 750 Milwaukee Avenue, 
Dunedin, Florida, 34698. The report is also available on the City's website at Dunedinguv.com. 



Basic Financial Statements 



City of Dunedin, Florlda 
Statement of Net Assets 

September 30,2006 

Governmental Buslnesa-type 

Cash and cash equ~valents 
Receivables, net of 

allowance for doubtful accounts 
Internal balances 

Due from other governments 

inventories 
Prepaid items 

Accrued interest receivable 

Deposits 

Advance8 to other funds 
Restrtcted assets: 

Temporarily restricted 
Cash and cash equ~valents 

Interest receivable 

Charges receivable 
Defened charges 
Caplal assets net of accumulated 

depreciation 
Land 

Buildings 
lnfrastruclure 
Improvements other than burldings 

Machinery and equipment 
Construction in prwress 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable and other 
current liabilities 

Accrued interest payable 
Deferred revenue 

Due to other governments 

Due to other hrnds 
L~abilities payabte from restricted assets 
Noncurrent Irabilities: 

Due within one year 

Due in more than one year 
Total liabilities 

NET ASSET!$ 

Invested in caplal assels, 

net of related deb1 

Restricted for: 
Public safety programs 

Capfial asset replacement 

Street lights 
Debt service 
Perpetual care 

Unrestricted 

Total net assets 

rhc amompanymg nolea are an integral pan ol those RmnCial statements 

Actlvitiw Actlvltlea Total 



City of Ounedin, Florlda 
Statement of Actlvlties 

For the Flscal Year Ended September 30,2006 

Nel (Expense) Revenue and 

FunctlonslPrqnms 
Primary Gwemment: 

Governmental act!vrtles: 
Genera I governmen: 
Publc safety 
Physical environment 

Transpo*bon 
Emornic env~mnment 

Culture and recreation 

Interest on long-term debt 

Total governmenial adlvrties 

B~lness-tvue 

Solid waste 

WaterlSewer utility 
Reclaimed water 
SlomrwaM ulllty 

Marina 

GaH course 

Total business-type anlvltres 

Total primarj government 

Program Revenues Changes In Wet Assets 

Operating Capltal Prlrnafy Gwernrnent 

Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-type 

Exnenws Senlceg Contributions CantrlWons ActivWtjes Actlvltles Total 

Propeny taxes 

U h l i  serwlw l a w e  

lnfrastucture wles s u W  
Half cent sales k 

Franchise taxes 
State revenue sharing 

Unrestricted investment earnlngs 

Loss an sale of capital asses 
T r a n s f a  

Total general revenues and transfers 
Change in net assets 

Net Assets - beginning 

Net - Assets - mding 

The aaornpanying notes are an integral pan of these financial stalemena 



City of Dunodln, Florlda 

Balance Sheet for Oovernmental Funds 
September 30,2006 

Other Total 

ASSETS 

Casn and cash equivalents 
Accodnts rece~vable, net of 

allowance for doubtful accounts 

Due from other governments 
Inventones 

Prepatd items 

Accrued inlerest receivable 

Deposlts 

Advances to other funds 

Restnded assets 

Temporarm,ly restricted: 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Accrued interest receivable 

Toal assets 

p 
Liablllties 

Accounts payable 

Contracts payable 

Accrued salancs payable 

Deposits payable 

Deferred revenue 

Due lo other governments 

Mhsr current liabllfies 

Total liabilities 

F ~ n d  Balances: 

Resewed for: 

Encumbrances 
Advances 

Public safety programs 

Cap~tal projects 
Street fights 

Perpetual care nonexpendable 

Unreserved, reponed In; 

General tund 

One cent sales tax fund 

Special revenue funds 

Capital projects hnds 

Total fund b a l a n ~ s  

Total liabilities and fund balances 

Genanl One Cent Governmental Governmental 

Fund Sales Tax Fund Funds Funds 

Amou~ts reported for g~vernmental act~uttles in the statement of net assets are 

different because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activ~lies are not finandal 
resourms and, therelore, are not reported In the funds. 

Ir.temaI service funds are used by management to charge the Costs of 
fleet and facility management and insurance to indiv~clual funds. The 

asseis and liabilities of Ihe ~ntemal service funds are Included In 

governmental activities n Me statement of net assets. 
Long-term I~abilities, including bonds payable and acctued interest, 

are not due and payable in the cunen! period and therefore are 
not rewed in tne funds 

Net assets of governmental actlwties 

The accornpanylng notes are sn integral part of these financial statemenls. 
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City of Dunedln, Florida 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

Governmental Funds 
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30,2006 

Other Total 
General One Cent Governmental Governmental 

Fund Sales Tax Fund Funds Funds 
REVENUES 

Taxes. 

Property 

Fran~h~se  

Ut~l~ty service 
Licenses and permlts 

Intergovernmental 

Charges for services 

Fries 

Investment earnlngs 

Rents 

Contrlbut~ons and donations 

Other revenue 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

General government 

Public safety 
Phys~cal environment 

Transportation 

Economic environment 

Culture and recreation 

Debt service: 

Principal 

Interest 

Capital outlay: 
General government 

Public safety 

Physical environment 
Transportailon 

Economic environment 

Culture and recreat~on 

Aids and grants 

Total expendltures 

Excess of revenues 
over (under) expendltures 

QTHER FINANCING SOURCES [USES) 
Debt proceeds 

Transfers in 
Transfers out 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balances - beginning 

Fund balances - ending $ 8,555,299 $ 5,208.419 S 6,288.764 $ 20,052,482 

The accompanying noles are an integral pan of these financial Statements B& 



City of Dunedln, Florida 
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, 

Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds 
to the Statement of Activities 

For the Flscal Year Ended September 30, 2006 

Amounts reported for governmental activities In the statement of activities (page B-3) are 

d~fferent because, 

Net change In fund balances -total governmental funds (page BB) 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the 

statement of activ~t~es the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated 

usehl llves and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which 

capltal outlays exceeded depreciation in the current period. 

Expenditures for capital assets 

Less current year depreciation 

Debt proceeds provide current financial resources to 
governmental funds, but issuing debt Increases long-lerm 
liab~lit~es in the statement of net assets. Repayment of principal 

is an expenditure in the governmental funds, bul the repayment 
reduces long-ten liabilities in the statement of net assets, 

Add~tions to long-term debt 

Principal payments 

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of 

current financial resources and, therefore, are not reporled as eXp8ndRureS In 

governmental funds. 

Change in compensated absences 

Change in accrued interest expense 

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of vehicle 

ma~ntenance, facility maintenance and self insurance to individual funds. 

The net income (loss) of the internal service funds is reported with 
governmental actlvltles 

Change In net assets of governmental act~v~tres (page 8-3) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements 



Clty of Dundln, Florlda 

General Fund 
Statement of Revenues, Expendlturma, and Changes In Fund Balances - Budget and Actual 

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30,2006 

Varlanee with 

Flnat Budget - 
Positive 

Origlnal Final Actual Amounts (Negative) 
REVEHUEQ 

Taxes 
PmoertV 
F ranchlse 
util~ry service 

Clcenses and pe:mits 
Iniergovernmental 

C narges lor sewlces 
F~nes 

Investment earnings 

Rents 
Other revenue 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Current 

General government. 
City wmmiss~on 

City manager 
Legal 

C~ ty  clerk 
Finance 

Administration 

Total general government 
Public safety- 

Caw enforcement 
Fire wntrol 
Cornmun~ty sewlces 

Total publac salety 
Transponat~on 

iramc control 

Streets 
Total uansponation 

Culture and recteation. 
L~brary 

Leisure services administration 
Recreat~on 

Parks 
Total culture and recreation 

Debt serviae. 
Pnncipal 

Interest 
Total debt service 

Aids and grants 

Total expenditures 

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES lUSESl 
Transfers in 

Transfers out 

Total other financing uses 

Net change in fund balanoes 
Fund balances - bqinning 

Fund balances - ending 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements 



City of Dunedin, Florida 

One Cent Sales Tax Fund 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes In Fund Balances - Budgat to Actual 

For the Flscal Year Ended September 30,2006 

REVENUES 
intergovernmental revenues, 

Infrastructure sales surtax 

Miscellaneous revenues: 

Interest earnings 
Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Capital projects: 

General government 
Public Safety 
Transportation 

Culture and recreation 

Debt service 
Principal 

Interest 

Total expenditures 

Excess of revenues over expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES I [USES) 

Transfen In 

Transfers out 
Total olher financ~ng uses 

Net change In fund balances 

Fund balances - beg~nning 

Fund balances - end~ng 

Budneted Amounts 
Variance with 

Flnal Budget - 
Positive 

Original Final Actual Amounts (Negatlvo) 

The accompanying notes are an rntegral par1 of these financial statements. 
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City of Dunedin, Florida 
Statement d Net Assets 

PrOprletary Funds 

September 30,2006 

Business-type Adivltles - Enterprise Funds 

Internal 

Solid WaterlSewer Reclaimed Stormwater Golf Service 

Waste Vt i l i i  Water Utility Marina Course Total Funds 

ASSETS 

Current assets: 

Cash and cash equlvaknts 

Acuxlnts rece~vable, net of 

allowance for unml lmbks  

AssessmenWlmns receivable, net of 
allowance for uncoll&bbs 

Due lrwn other governments 
Inventones 

Prepaid items 
lntefest remvable 

Deposits 

Total current assets 

Noncurrent assets: 

W Reslrided ash,  cash equivalents, and 

investments: 
Customer deposits 

lrnpad fees 
Charges FecervaMe 

Total restrict& assets 
Mew chafges 
Capital assets. 

Land 

Bu!ldings 
Improvements other than buildings 

Machinety aRd equipment 

Consl.uaion in progress 
Less accumulated deprewation 

Total capital assets, nel ol 
aowmulated depreuation 

Total noncurrent assets 

Total assets 

The accompanying notes are an interral part of these financ~al starements. 





City of Dunedin, Florlda 

Statemem of Revenues, Expenses. and Changes in Fund Met Assets 

Pmprletary Funds 

For the F~scal Year Ended Seplsmber 30,2006 

Operating revenues- 
Charges for s e r v ~ ~ ~ s  
Other operabng revenue 

Total operating revenues 

Operating expmses: 

Personal sew~ces 

Supplies and sewices 
Depreciation 

Total -rating expenses 
Operaticg Income (loss) 

Nonoperabng revenues (erpenses): 
investment eamlngs 

E3 Interest~amortKabon expense 

Business4ype Actlvkles -Enterprise Funds 

Internal 

Solid Wa(cr1Sewer Reclaimed Stormwater Gotf Sewice 
Waste Utlllty Water Utiliiy Marlna Course Total Funds 

Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets 25.885 

Total noncrpemting revenues (expnses) 12,509 (336.118) (8.427) 2.303 27.379 2,688 - (299,666) 262.731 

lnoorne before crmtr~bbt im and transfers (6g.mo) 

Contributions - special ass&kmenW&rges 

Contribuhons - impact fees 

Transfers In 1 (out) 

Transfers out 

Change in net assets 
Total net assets - begmning 

Total ner assets - ending 

Adjustwed to refled the wn~lidat lon of internal servm fund acllvlties 

mlaled to enterprise funds 

Change rn net assets or business-type activities (page B-3) 

me accompanyrq noks are an integrai pan of these financ~al statements. 
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City of Dundin, Flodda 

Statement of Cash Flows 

Proprietary Funds 

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30,2006 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING 

ACTIVITIES 

Rwsipls Mrn customers 

Payments lo suppliers 

Payments to employees 

Other operating revenues 
Net cash prnvldm by (used in) 

-rating adivitie 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPIYAL 

FINANCING ACTlVrClES 

Transfers in 

Net cash provided by (us& for) 
noncapilal frnarmng activities 

f CaSH FLOWS FROM CAPtTAL AND 

* REUTED FINANCING ACTlVlTlES 

Purdmse of capttal asseta 

Principal paid on capital deM 

Interest paid on capital debt 

Proceeds from sale of capital assets 

Capilal cnntnblR~ons fmm psivale sources 
Net cash u w d  lor capital and 

related finanung activities 

Business-type Actlvltles - Enterprise Funds 

Internal 
$0116 WaterlSewer Reclaimed Stormwater Golf Service 

Waste Utlllty Water mil4 Matlna Courue Total Funds 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTIMG 

ACTIWTIES 

Investment earnings 12.087 215.183 45,680 19,620 25.386 3,033 320,989 236,119 

Net cash pnwrded by investing adrvlt~es 12.087 215,183 45,880 19>620 25.386 3.033 320,989 236.119 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equ~valents (42,934) (1,5.10.59) 481.573 (44.377) 192.783 [126.619) (1 .oso,l la) 335.006 

Cash and cash equiuabnls - m r  1 279,030 4,460,907 761.508 425,249 459.257 128.087 6,514,038 4,976.991 

Casn and cash quivalents - September 30 % 238.0% $ 2320,353 $ 1.243,081 $ 380.872 % 652,050 $ 1.468 $ 5.433.920 $ 5,311,997 

The accompanying notes are an integral pan d these financial statements. 



City of Dunedin, Florida 

Statement of Cash Flows 

Proprietary Funds 

For the Fiscal Year Ended September M, 2006 

Reconclllatlon of operating lnwme (loss) to 

net cash provided by (used in) opatlng 
activities: 

Opwating Income (loss) 

Adlustments to remnclle operal~ng 

inmme (loss) lu net cash prov!d& by 

(used m) operating adiviws. 

DeprPclatlon 

(Increase) decrease In 

m u n r s  receivable 

Decrease in due from &er governments 
Inventories 

Due from other governments 

Prepa~d terns 
Oderred charges 

haease [deaease) in 
Aomunts payable 

Amrued expenses 

De Wits 
Due to other fur& 

Compensated absences 
Total adjustments 

Net cash pmvlded by (used In) operating amvltles 

Business-type Anivltles -Enterprise Funds 

Internal 

Solid WaterlSewer Reclalrned Stormwater Golt Senrice 

Waste utility Water Utlllly Marina Course Total Funds 

The accnmwnying not- are an Integral part of these financial statements. 



City of Dunedin, Florida 
Statement of Flduclary Net Assets 

Fiduciary Funds 
Septembmr 30,2006 

Pension 

Plans 

ASSETS 

Investments 

Due from other governments 
Prepa~d items 
Accrued ~nterestldividends receivable 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable 

Total liabitltles 

NET ASSETS 

Held In trust for penslon benefits 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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City of Dunedin, FLorMa 
Statement of Changes In Fiduciary Net  Assets 

Fiduciary Funds 
September 30,2006 

Pension 
Plans 

ADDITIONS: 

Contr~butions 

Employer 
Plan members 

Total contr~butions 

investment earnlngs 
Nel appreciation In fair value of ~nvestments 
Interest 

Dividends 

Total investment earnings 

Less investment expenses 
Net investment earnings 

Miscellaneous revenue 

Total additions 

DEDUCTIONS: 

Benefits 
Administrative expenses 

Total deductions 

Change in net assets 
Net assets - begtnning 

Net assets - ending 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements 
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CITY OF DUNEDIN, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

NOTE I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 
ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The City of Dunedin, Florida (the "City"), which was founded on June 1,1899, and incorporated under Chapter 4877, 
Acts of 1899 of the State of Florida, has a population of approximately 37,000 (which includes seasonal residents) living 
within an area approximating 10 square miles. The City i s  contiguous to the northern side of Clearwater, Florida. The 
City operates under a Charter originally adopted January 6, 1926, and a Commission-Manager form of government. The 
most recent revision to the City's Charter was on Apnl 18, 1996. 

The financial statements of the City have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles 
(Gk9P)  as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the standard- 
setting body for governmental accounting and financial reporting. The GASB periodicauy updates its codification of the 
existing Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards which, along with subsequent GASB 
pronouncements (Statements and Interpretations), constitutes GAAP for governmental units. The more sigmficant of 
these accounting policies are described below. 

A. REPOR7lNG ENTITY 

The City IS a Florida municipal corporation with a five member City Commission comprised of the Mayor (elected at 
large) and four commissioners. In evaluating the City as a reporting entity, management has addressed all potential 
component units (traditionally separate reporting entities) for whch the City may or may not be financially accountable 
and, as such, may be included within the City's FlnanciaI Statements. In accordance with GASB Statement No. 14, the 
City (the primary government) is fmancially accountable if i t  appoints a voting majority of the organization's governing 
bead, and (1) it is able to impose its will on the organization, or (2) there is a potential for the organization to provide 
specific financial benefit to or q o s e  specific financinl burden on the City. Additionally, the primary government 1s 
required to consider other organizations for wkch the nature and sigfuficance of their relahowhip with the primary 
government are such that exclusion would cause the reporting entivs fmancial statements to be misleading or 
incomplete. Based on the foregoing criteria, the Community Redevelopment Agency and Firefighters' Pension have been 
included in the City's fmancial statements in a blended presentation. 

1. Community Redevelopment Agency (CRA): 

The City Commission serves as the CRA Board. Although legally separate, the CRA is bIended as a special revenue fund 
type cornponen t unj t into the primary government. 

2. Firefighters' Pension Fund: 

The Ciws fuefighters participate in a separate Firefighters' Pension Plan. The Plan functions for the benefit of these 
employees and is governed by a five member pension board. Tbe pension board is composed of two employees, two City 
residents, and a fifth member elected by the other four members. The Crty and the Plan participants are obligated to fund 
all Plan costs based upon actuarial valuations. The City is authorized to establish benefit levels a d  to approve the 
actuarial assumptions used in the determination of contribution levels. The Plan is legally separate, buk blended as a 
fiduciary fund type component unit into the primary government. 

Complete financial statements of the above individual component units can be obtained from: Earl "Sandy" Sanders, 
CPA, Finance Director, City of Dunedin, 750 Milwaukee Avenue, Dunedin, Florida 34698. 



CITY OF DUNEDIN, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

NOTE I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFlCANT 
ACCOUNTING POLICIES TCONTtNUED) 

B. GOVERNMENT-mE AND FCTND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The City has adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 34, "Basic Financial Statements and Management's 
Discussion and Analysis for State and b c a l  Governments." The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the 
statement of net assets and the statement of activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the 
primary g o v m n t  and its component units. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from 
these statements. Governmental aciiviri~s, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are 
reported separately from business-type activities, whch rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the drrect expenses of a given function or segment are offset 
by program revenues. Dirtact expenses are those that are clearly identif~ble with a specific function or segment. 
Program revenues include 1 ) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit fiom goods, 
services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to 
meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly 
included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues. 

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even though 
the latter are excluded fiom the government-wide financial statements. Major inhvidual governmental funds and major 
inhvidwl enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund fmancial statements. 

The government-wide fmancial statements art reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accnrtrl 
basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fixid financial statements. Revenues are recorded when 
earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property 
taxes are recogruzed as revenues in the year for whlch they are levied. Grants and similar items are recopzed as 
revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. 

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the currenlfinancial resources measurur~ient focus and the 
modified uccrunl basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. 
Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to 
pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose. the government considers revenues to be available if they are 
collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is 
incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to 
compensated absences and claim and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due. 

Property taxes, franchise taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all 
considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. Only the 
portion of special assessments receivable due withmthe current fiscal period is considered tobe susceptible to accrual as 
revenue of the current period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is 
received by the City. 



CITY OF DUNEDIN, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

NOTE I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING, 
AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATTON 

The City reports the following major funds: 

The G~neraI Fund is the City's prrmary operating fund. It accounts for all financial sources of the general 
government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 

The One Cent Sales Tax Fund accounts for the costs of infrastructure having a life expectancy of five (5) or more 
years and is funded by proceeds from the one-cent sales surtax approved by Pinellas County, Florida voters. 

The Solid Waste Fund accounts for the provision of soIid waste services to the residents of the City. A11 activities 
necessary to the provisions of  this swvice are accounted for in this fund. 

The Water/Sewer Utility Fund accounts for the provision of water and sewer services to residents of the City, and 
some County residents. All activities necessary to the provision of these services are accounted for m this Fund, 
including, but not limited to, adrmntstration, treatment plants and line maintenance. 

The Reclaimed Water Filnd accounts for the provision of services for the collection, treatment, storage, and 
conveyance of reclaimed water. 

The Storr~lrrwter U t i l i ~  Fund accounts for the provision of services for the collection, storage, treatment and 
conveyance of stomwater for the benefit of all developed property within the City. 

The Marina Fund accounts for the fmancing, operation and maintenance of the City marina and d ~ e  associated real 
P'oPertY 

The Golf Course Fund accounts for the financing, operation and maintenance of the City's golf course. 

Addihonally, the City reports the following fund types: 

The Internal Service Funds account for buildmg maintenance, vehicle maintenance and self insurance (risk 
management) provided to other departments of the City on a cost reimbursement basis. 

The Pension Trust Funds account for the activities of the Firefighters' Retirement Plan and the Employees Defined 
Contribution Plan. which accumulates resources for pension benefit payments to firefighters and non-special nsk 
employees hued after December 3 1, 1995. 

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1. 1989, generally are followed 
in both the government-wide and proprietary fimd financial statements to the extent that those standards do not conflict 
with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. Governments also have the option of 
following subsequent private-sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same 
limitation. The City has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance. 



CITY OF DUNEDIN, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 
ACCOUNTING POLICES (CONTINIF,D) 

C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING, 
A P U T  FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATlON (CONTINUED) 

As a general rule the effect of the interfund activity has been eliminated fromthe government-wide financial statements. 
Exceptions to this general rule are charges between the City's water and sewer function and various other functions ofthe 
City. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions 
concerned. 

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or privileges 
provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions, including r e s ~ c t e d  investment 
earnings. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise. 
general revenues includes all taxes. 

Proprietary h d s  distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoprrnting items. Operating revenues and 
expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary 
fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the solid waste, waterlsewer utility, reclaimed 
water. stormwater utility, marina, and golf course enterprise funds and of the City's internal service funds are charges to 
customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds and internal senice funds include the cost of 
sales and smjces,  adrmtllstrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting 
this definition, such as waterlsewer utility fund unpact fees, are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's policy to use reshcted resources 
first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

D. ASSETS, LIABIL,ITIES, AND NET ASSETS OR EQUITY 

1. Deposits and investments 

n e  City considers cash on hand, demand deposits, and bank repurchase agreements with an original maturity of 90 days 
or less to be cash and cash equivalents. In adhtion, each fund's equity in the City's investment pool has beentreated as a 
cash equivalent since cash may be withdrawn from the pool at any time without prior notice or penalty. 

State statutes and local law authorize the City to invest in direct obligations of the Urns. .  Federally-supported Agencies 
and Instrumentalities, Florida government investment pools, commercial paper, repurchase agreements, debt of Florida 
political subdivisions, money market mutual funds, time deposits, savings accounts, mutual funds and bankers 
acceptances. 

All of the City's investments are stated at fair value. The fair value of these investments are determined by the h d s '  
share price as of September 30,2006. 

Investments for the City that do not have an established market are reported at estimated fair values. Fair value is the 
amount at which an investment would be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a 
forced or liquidation sale. 

The Florida State Board of A h s t r a t i o n  Lucal Government Pooled investment Fund has met the criteria to be 
considered a "2A-7 like" Investment Fund as defined by GASB Statement No. 3 1. Therefore, amortized cost may be 
used for valuation. The fair value of the City's investment in th~s pool is determined by the pool's share price (account 
balance). 



CITY OF DUNEDIN, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

NOTE I.  SUMMARY OF SIGNJHICANT 
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND NET ASSETS OR EQUITY (CONTINUED) 

2. Receivables and payables 

Activity between h d s  that are representative of lwdinglbomwing arrangements outstandmg at the end of the fiscal year 
are referred to as either "due to/from other funds'' (i.e., the current portion of interfund loans). All other outstanding 
balances between funds are reported as "due tolfiom other funds." Any residual balances outstanding between the 
governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the government-wide firmcia1 statements as "internal 
balances." 

Advances between funds, as  reported in h e  fund fmancial statements, are offset by a fund balance reserve account in 
applicable governmental funds to indicate that they are not available for appropriation and are not expendable- available 
financial resources. 

Accounts receivable are recorded in the General, Special Revenue, Capital Projects, Enterprise, and lnternal Service 
funds. Where appropriate, an associated allowance for doubtful accounts has been established. 

Utility (water/sewer, reclaimed water, and stormwater), solid waste and marina operating revenues are generally 
recognized on the basis of monthly cycle billings. The City recurds utility operating revenues for services delivered 
during the current fiscal year which will be billed during the next fiscal year. 

3. Property Taxes 

All real and tangible personal property taxes are due and payable on November 1 of each year, or as soon thereafter as 
the assessment roll is certified by the County Property Appraiser. The County mails to each property owner on the 
assessment roll a notice of tax levy by the various governmental entities in the  County. Taxes may be paid upon receipt 
of such notice with discounts at the rate of 4% if paid in November, 3% if paid in December, 2% if paid in January and 
1% if paid in February. Taxes paid during the month of March are without discount. All unpaid taxes on real and 
tangible personal property become delinquent on April 1 of the year following the year in which the taxes were assessed. 

On or before April 25 of each year, a list ofdelinquent personal property tax payers is advertised. Warrants are tssued 
directing seinue and sale of the personal property of the taxpayer if the delinquent taxes are not paid before May 1. On 
or before June 1 of the following year in which taxes are assessed, liens are filed and tax certificates are sold on all real 
estate parcels with outstanding taxes. These parcels are advertised once a week for four weeks prior to the tax  certificate 
sale. As a result of the process, h City's delinquent or uncollected property taxes at year-end ate immaterial. 

T h e  City is permitted by state law to levy taxes up to 10 mills of assessed valuation (exclusive of taxes levied for the 
payment of bonds). The millage rate levied by the City for the fiscal year ended September 30,2006 was 4.4253 mills 
and budgeted for 2006-2007 at 4.0934 mills. Current tax collections for the City were approximately 93.7% of the total 
tax levy. 



ClTY OF DUNEDIN, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

NOTE I. 
-1 

D. ASSETS, LIABILITLES, AND NET ASSETS OR EQUITY (CONTINUED) 

4. Inventories 

All City inventories are maintained on a consumption basis of accounting where items are purchased for inventory and 
charged to the budgetary accounts as the items are consumed. Inventories beldby the General Fund consists principally 
of general office, printing, traffic control and maintenance supplies. Inventories included in the Utlljty Fund consist of 
parts held for repair and maintenance of the system. Inventories included in the Internal Service Funds consist of 
maintenance parts, tires, fuels and supplies. Inventories are stated at average or weighted average cost. Appropriate- 
allowances have been recorded for obsolete and surplus items. 

The City has elected to indicate a reservation of fund balance for all inventory held in governmental funds at the end of 
the fiscal year. 

5. Prepaid Items 

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit subsequent fiscal years are recorded as prepaid items. The cost 
of these items are recorded as expenditures, when comumed rather than when purchased. Prepaid items are equally 
offset by a fund b a h c e  reserve whch indicates that they do not constitute "available spendable resources" even though 
they are a component of net current assets. 

6. Capital Assets 

Capital assets, which include property, plant and equipment are reported in the applicable governmental or buiness-we 
activities columns in Ihe government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the City as assets with an 
mitial individual cost of more than $1,000 (amount not rounded) and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such 
assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost ifpurchased or constructed. Donatedcapital assets are 
recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation. 

The City has elected to delay implementing of the retroactive recordahon of kdrastructure assets, such as roads. bndges, 
curbs, gutters, streets and sidewalks and lighting systerns, acquired prior to October 1,2001. The implementation of that 
part of GASB Statement No. 34 may be deferred until fiscal year 2007. However, beginning with the year ended 
September 30,2004 any newly constructed infrastructure assets have been included in these f m c i e l  statements. 

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets lives are 
not capitalized. 

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are comtructed. Interest incurred during the 
construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of the capitalized value of the assets 
constructed. 

Property, plant, and equ~pnlent of the primary government is depreciated using the smight line method over the 
following estimated useful lives: 



CITY OF DUNEDIN, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

NOTE I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 
m) 

D. ASSETS. LLABILITIES, AND NET ASSETS OR EQUITY (CONTJNUED) 

6. Capital Assets (Continued) 

Assets 

Buildings 
infrastructure 
Building lrnprovements 
lmprovernents other than Buildings 
Machinery and equipment 

7. Accumulated Unused Compensated Absences 

T h e  City records the "vested portion of accumulated unused compensated absences" at the end of each fiscal year, based 
on each employee's accumulated unused hours and rate of pay. Generally, employees use their compensated absences as 
they are earned. For this reason, the accumulated unused portion as of September 30 is treated as a long-term liability. 

h is the City's policy in its Proprietary Funds to reflect on an accrual basis the amounts of earned but unused vacation 
leave and that portion of earned but unused sick leave estimated to be payable upon retirement. 

With respect to the current fiscal year, management has determined that no material mounts of accumulated unpaid 
vacation and sick leave at the close of the year will be liquidated with expendable available resources; therefore, the 
entire liability for such leave pertaining to the GovernmentaI Funds is reflected in long-term debt. 

8. Long-term obligations 

In the government-wide financial statements, and propetary fund types in the fund financial statements, long-term debt 
and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type 
activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net assets. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are 
deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of 
the applicable bond premium or discount. Bmd issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the 
term of the related debt. 

9. Restricted assets 

Certain proceeds of the City's enterprise fund revenue bonds, as well as certain resources set aside for their repayment, 
are classified as restricted assets on the balance sheet because they are maintained in separate bank accounts and their use 
is limited by the applicable bond covenants. The "renewal and replacement" account is used to report resources set aside 
to meet unexpected contingencies or to fund asset renewals and replacements. 

10. Reserves 

a. Governmental Funds and certain Fiduciary Funds Reserves have been established for open encumbrances at year 
end reflecting purchase commitments expected to generate claims on current assets. Resewes have been established to 
reflect legal restrictions whch limit the City's spending discretion. Finally, designatians of unreserved fund equities 
indicate City management's tentative plans for h n c i a l  resource utilization in a future period. 

C-7 



CITY OF DUNEDIN, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

NOI'E I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 
ACCOUNTLNG POLICIES 4 CONTINUED) 

D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND NET ASSETS OR EQUITY (C.ONTINUED) 

10. Reserves (continued) 

b. Debt Service Funds and Fiduciary Funds - Reserves are created to indicate a segregation of a portion of fund 
balance equal to the net current assets restricted for meeting various covenants defined in the revenue bond indentures 
and reshcting current funds for future retirement benefits. Usage of reserves has been limited to the following items: 

1 Reserves for Debt Services - restricted for future servicing of the Revenue bonds. 

(2 )  Held in trust for pension benefits - restrjcted for payment of retirement benefits, 

1 1. Deferred Revenue 

Occupational licenses, certain assessments receivable, and some pledges receivable are measmble, but not available, as 
of the end of the fiscal year and thus are shown as deferred revenue. The deferred revenue will be recognized as revenue 
in the fiscal year that it becomes available. 

It. Encumbrances 

Encumbrance accounting, under which purc base orders, contracts, and other comrnitmenrs €or the expenditure of monies 
are recorded in order to reserve that porrion of the applicable appmpriation, is employed as an extens~on of formal 
budgetary integration in the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, and Capital Project Funds. Encumbrances 
outstanding at year end are reported as reservations of fUnd balances since they do not constitute expenditures or 
habilities. 

13. Net Assets 

Net assets of the government-wide and proprietary f u d s  are categorized ns invested in capital assets net of related debt, 
restricted or unrestricted. The first category represents net assets related to property, plant, equipment and mfrastructure, 
net of unspent fmancing proceeds. The restricted category represents assets restricted by requuemwb ofrevenue bonds 
and other externalIy imposed constraints or by legislation in excess of the related liabilities payable from unrestricted 
assets. 

E. REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND EXPERSES 

1. Operating Subsidies, Grants, and Impact Fees: 

Grants t 0 proprietary funds used for construction or to finance current operations a re recorded as non-operat ing revenue 
when earned. 

Impact fees represent a capacity charge for the proportionate share of the cost of expanding, oversizing, separating or 
constructing new additions to the Utility System. The City is obligated to expend these funds only to provide expanded 
capacity to the system. Water and sewer impact fee revenues are classified as contrjbutions. 



CITY OF DUNEDIN, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

NOTE I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 
ACCOUNTING POLICIES CCONTLNUED) 

E. REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND EXPENSES (CONTINUED) 

2. Interfund Transactions: 

Interfund sales and purchases are accounted for as fund revenues, expenditures or expenses (as appropriate). 
Transactions which constitute reimbursements to a fund for expenhtures (expenses) initially made are recorded as 
expenditures or expenses (as appropriate) in the reimbursing fund, and as reductions of the expenditures (expenses) in the 
reimbursed fund. All interfund &amactions except loans, reimbursements and interfund sales and purchases are 
accounted for as transfers or contributions. All of  the City's interfhd transfers are routine budgeted lransactions between 
funds. 

3. Administrative Charges: 

Certain a h s t r a t ~ v e  expenses are incurred by the General Fund on behalf of the other funds. In addition, some 
adrmnisbative charges are incurred by the Utility Fund for services rendered that benefit other funds. Both the General 
Fund and the Util~ty Fund receive payment for these services based on a percentage allocation in accordance with 
budgeted appropriat~ons. These administrative reimbursements for the year ended September 30,2006 are presented 
below. 

Reunbursements to the General Fund were charged to the following funds: 

Fund - Amount 

Solid Waste $ 371,175 

Marina 31,109 

Stormwater 

Reclaimed Water 

Golf 

Total 

Reunbursements to the WaterISewer Utility Fund were charged to the following funds: 

Fund Amount 

General $ 287,096 

Solid Waste 146,44 1 

Marina 7,141 

Storrnwater Utility 

Reclaimed Water 

Total 



CITY OF DUNEDIN, FLORIDA 
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SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

NOTE 11 - RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE 
AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

A. EXPLANATION OF CERTAIN DIFFERENCES 
BETWEEN THE GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCE SHEET 
AND THE GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 

The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation betweenfind balance - total governmentalfinds and net 
assers - govemmenrol ucriviries as reported in the government-wide statement of net assets. One element of that 
reconciliation explains that "long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current period 
and therefore are not reported in the funds." The details of thls $(27,257,319) difference are as follows: 

Accrued interest payable $ (335,439) 

Capital leases payable (27,499) 

Revenue bonds payable (22,743,109) 

Special assessment debt with government commitment (1 33,792) 

Mortgage note payable (2,850,000) 

Compensated absences (1,167,480) 

Net adjustment to reducefind balance - total govenimenralfrtnds to 
arrive at net assets - government wide activities Jd2zama 

B. EXPLANATION OF CERTAIN DIFFERENCES BETWEEN THE GOVERNMENTAL 
FCnvD STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITUFtES. AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCES AND TJ3E GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances includes a reconcil~ation 
between net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds and changes in nut assris qfgov~.mmenrul acrivititBf as 
reported in the government-wide statement of activities. One element of h a t  reconciliation explains that "Governmental 
funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated 
over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense." The details of this % 1 I ,  126,092 difference are as 
follows: 

Capital outlay $ 14,675,909 

Depreciation expense (3,549,817) 

Net adjustment to increase net changes in fund balunces - 
total govemmentulfinds to arrive at changes in net assets 
of governmental activities m 
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SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

NOTE 11 - 1 
AND FWND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ('CONTINUED) 

B. EXPLANATION OF CERTAIN DIFFERENCES BETWEEN THE GOVERNMENTAL 
FUND STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITUREX. AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCES AND THE: GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF 
ACTIWTIES (CONTINUED) 

Another elenlent of  that reconciliation states that "the issuance of long-term debt (e-g., bonds, leases) provides current 
fmncial resources to govemmentaI funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consunles the current 
financial resources of governmental funds." Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net assets. The details of 
this ($1,647,014) difference are as follows: 

Additions to Iong-term debt $ (3,900,000) 

Principal repayments : 

Revenue notes 2,166,4 18 

Capital leases 19,672 

Special assessment - 66.896 

Net adjustment to decrease net changes in fund balancm - rota1 governmental 
Jirnds to arrive at changes in net assets of governmento1 activities $ (1.647.014] 

Another element of  that reconciliation states that "some expenses reported in the statement ofactivities do not require the 
use of current tinancia1 resources and therefore are not ~eported as expenditures in governmental funds." The details of 
ths  $1,595 hfference is as follows: 

Compensated absences $ 137,789 

Accrued interest (136,194) 

Net adjustment to increase net chnnges injidnd balances - rota1 govemmenrai 
funds to arrive at changes in net assets of governmental acrivities u 

NOTE 111 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLLANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY 

A. THE CITY'S BUDGET POL[CY IS SUMMARIZED AS FOLLOWS: 

1. Annul budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accountingprimiples for all govemlental 
funds. All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year end. 

2. The City Manager submits to the City Commission a proposed operating budget for the fiscal year. The operating 
budget includes proposed expenditureslexpenses and the means of financing them. 

3. Public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comments. 
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NOTE III - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY (CONTINUED) 

A. THE CITY'S BUDGET POLICY IS SUMMARIZED AS FOLLOWS (CONTINUED): 

4. The budget is approved by the City Commission through the passage of a resolution. The level on which 
expendituredexpenses may not legally exceed appropriations is the individual depamnent/fund. 

5 .  The appropriated budget is prepared by fund, function and deparhent. The City Manager is authorized to transfer 
budgeted amounts within depaments, except for budget changes affecting salary line items. All salary budget 
changes, as well as bansfers between d e p m n t s  must have City Commission approval. 

6 .  Forma1 budgetary integration was employed as a management control device during the year for all budgeted funds. 

B. COMPLIANCE WITH FINANCE RELATED LEGAL 
AND CONTRACTUAL PROVISIONS 

The City met the Rate Covenant requirement stipulated in the Water and Sewer Refunhng Revenue Bonds, Series 1993. 
The rate covenant requires Net Revenues to be 125% of the Bond Service Requirement. Net Revenues were 200% of the 
Bond Service Requirements for the Fiscal Year Ending September SO, 2006. The indebted Enterprise Funds had 
sufficient assets to make all required debt payments during the 2005-2006 Fiscal Year. 

The City was in compliance with the provisions of the "Disposition of Revenue" Section of the Water and Sewer 
Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 1993. 

No f h d s  were established or e l d a t e d  during this fiscal year. The Dunedin Stadurn Debt Service Fund was eliminated 
during the fiscal year ended September 30,2005 

D. EXCESS OF EXPENDITURES 
OVER RF,VENUE IN INDIVLDUAL FUNDS 

There is  an excess of Expenditures over Revenue in the Solid Waste Fund, Wakr/Sewer Utility Fund, Reclaimed Water 
Fund, Marina Fund, Golf Course Fund, Dunedin Stadium Fund, Fine Art Center Fund, Community Redevelopment 
Fund, G. Koutsourias Fund, Harbor View Dredging Fund, Stadium Capital Project Fund, County Gas Tax Fund, Leisure 
Services Capital Improvement Fund, Capital Improvement Fund and Infornution Technology Project Fund. All of these 
funds have sufficient undesignated fund balances as of September 30,2006 to cover the excess expenditures. 



CITY OF DUNEDIN, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

NOTE W .  DETAIL NOTES - ALL IWNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS 

A. ASSETS 

1. Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments 

The City of Dunedin maintains a cash and investment pool that is available for use by all funds. Each fund's ponion of 
this pool is reported in "Cash and Cash Equivalents." Interest earned by this pool is distributed to each fund monthly 
based on average month-end balances. 

The City classifies its operating investment portfolio as Cash and Cash Equivalents. The City's cash management pool 
allows individual funds and subfunds to, at any time, deposit additional cash or make withdrawals without prior notice or 
penalty, and thus, the City i s  internally managing a mutual fund which is considered by GASB to be a cash equivalent. 
The investment earnings on the City's cash management pool are reported as part of the investing activity. 

a. Deposits 

At year end, the book balance of the City's deposits was $135,370 and the bank balance was $569.883. The dit'ference 
between the book balance and bank balance is due to outstanding checks as of September 30,2006. The bank balancc is 
insured by federal depository insurance and, for the amount in excess of such federal depository insurance, by the State of 
Florida's Public Deposits Act. 

Provisions of the Act require that public deposits may only be made at qualified public depositories. The Act requires 
each qualified public depository to deposit with the State Treasurer eligible collateral equal to or inexcess of the required 
collateral as determined by the provisions of the Act. In the event of a failure by a qualified public depository, losses in 
excess of federal depository insurance and proceeds from the sale of the securities pledged by the defaulting depository, 
are assessed against the other qualified public depositories of the same type as the depository in default. 

b. Investments 

The City's investment policy and guidelines, except for pension fund assets, are defined by City ordinance. The written 
invesmot  policy was revised, by City Commission approval, on November 7, 2002. The policy specifies limits by 
instrument and institution (within instrument) and establishes a diversified investment strategy, minimum credit quality 
and authorized institutions available as counterparties. 

Implementation and direction, withm policy limits, is managed by the Director of Finance. with City Manager approval 
required for all transactions. 

The City's investment policy requires transactions to meet "payment versus delivery" perfection with securities be lng 
held by the City's third party custodian on behalf of and in the name of the City. The exceptions to h s  policy are 
ovemig ht repurchase agreements with the City's primary banking institution, and investments wjth Florida's State Board 
of Adnhstration (SBA). Investments with the SBA may be made ar liquidated by wire on a same day basis. Based on 
the SBA's investment option structure and its availability to all Iocal governmental units, individual unit perfection is not 
provided. The City has also developed a master repurchase agreement to address overnight, term and reverse repurchase 
transactions and, by poIicy, will only consider repurchase transactions with institutions which have executed a similar 
master repurchase agreement prior to any such transaction. 



Cl lY OF DUNEDIN, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

NOTE IV. # 

A. ASSETS (CONTINUED) 

1. Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments (continued) 

b. tnvestn~ents (continued) 

Investments in the SBA, mutual funds and indexed bassively managed) pension accounts are not evidenced by securities 
that exist in physical or boak entry form. Investments are reported at fair value. Short-term investments are reported at 
cost, whch approximates market value. Securities traded on national exchanges are valued at the last reported sales 
price. Investments that do not have an established market are reported at estimated fair market values. 

In addition to authorizing investment instruments, the City's policies also identify various portfolio parameters addressing 
issuer diversification, term-to-maturity and liquidity. 

The State Board of Adrmnistration (SBA) was established on June 21, 1928, pursuant to Chapter 14486. 1929 laws of 
Florida. The Board was subsequently created as a constitutional body corporate on January 1,1943, under the provisions 
of Senate Joint Resolution No. 324, 194 1; approved by the electorate in November 1942. The Board 1s composed of the 
Governor, as Chairman, the State Treasurer, as Treasurer and the State Comptroller, as Secretary, and provides the 
fol lo~ing services by law: (1) investment of funds of the Florida Retirement System (FRS); (2) admistration of debt 
service funds; (3) investment of trust and agency funds; and (4) distribution of the "Second Gas Tax." 

The Local Government Pooled Investment Fund is governed by Ch. 19-7 of the Florida Adrnuustrative Code. which 
identifies the Rules of the State Board of Adrmnistration. These rules provide guidance and establish the general 
operating procedures for the admmistration of the Local Governrneilt Pooled Investment Fund. Additionally, the office 
of the Auditor General performs the operational audit of the activities and investments of the State Board of 
Admistration. 

Since the Florida SBA Local Government Pooled Investment Fund (Fund) typically owns a substantial amount of 
treasury bills and notes, the Fund has utilized security lending program to generate supplemental income. Th~s  income is 
used to pay a sigmficant portion of the fees associated with the Fund which otherwise would have to be paid h m  regular 
Fund earnings. Any residual is used to build the Fund's reserve on behalf of participants. Both of these goals have been 
accomplished without impacting the regular earrungs in the Fund and with no change in the Fund's investment strategy. 
The investment in the Florida SBA pool is carried at the pool's share price at September 30,2006. 



CITY OF DUNEDIN, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

NOTE IV. DETAIL NOTES - ALL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS ICON'IINUJ3D) 

A. ASSETS (CONTINUED) 

1. Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments (continued) 

b. Investments (continued): 

The City's investments for all pools are sumnlarized and categorized under GASB 40 guidelines as follows to give an 
indication of the level of credit and interest rate risk assumed by the City at September 30,2006. 

Rating 

Standard Weighted 

Investments: 

U.S. Government 
Agencies 

U.S. Government 
Instrumentalities 

Florida State Board of Administration 
Local Gorpemment Pooled Investment 
Fund (SBA) 

Cash in bank 

Petty cash 

Total Lnvestments - 
cash and cash equivalents 

Fair Value -- 

& Average 
Duration 

Poor's -- (In Y ears1 

AAA 

AAA 

15,880,955 Rated Daily 

135,370 

2,108 



ClTY OF DUNEDIN, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

NOTE IV. DETAIL NOTES - ALL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS (CONTlNUED) 

A. ASSETS (CONTINUED) 

1. Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments (continued) 

b. Investments (continued): 

U. S. Government Securities are principaily composed of U.S. Treasury notes and bonds. U.S. Government Agencies 
include instruments issued by Government National Mortgage Association (GNMA), Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp 
(Freddie Mac), Federal Farm Credit Bank and Federal Home Loan Bank. 

Investments held in Pension Funds: 

Investments held by the City's Pension Trust Funds are summarized as follows: 

Rating 

Pension Funds: 

Weighted Average 
Fair Standard Duration 

W e  & Poor's 

L1.S. Government and Agency Securities $ 4,421,627 AAA 4.2 

Corporate Equities 12,909,774 - 

Corporate Obligations 

Money Market 

Total Pension Funds 

844,7 12 A - AAA 5.6 

230,474 M A  Daily 

u06.582 

-Rare. Consistent with state law and the investmentguidelines fot the City, the firefighters pension 
plan, a n d  the definedcontriburion pension plan their fixed income investrnencs are limited to a qualityratir-lgaf 
'A' or equivalent as rated by one or more recognized bond raring service at rhz time of purchase. Fixed income 
investmentswhich are downgraded to 'BAA' or equivalent must be liquidated within a reasonable perird of rime 
not ro exceed twelve months. Fixed income in~tstmentswhish are d o w n g d e d  tielow 'BAA' shall be liquidated 
immediately. 

Interest Rate Risk: The City manages irs exposure to fair value losses arising horn increasing rates through its 
adopted investment policies, The Cig limirs its fixed portfolio's weighted average maturity ru 2.5 years. 

The duration of the fixed income portfolios of the firefighters' and the defined contribution pension plans will 
nor exceed that of the Lehmail Brothers Aggregate Bond Index. 



ClW OF DUNEDIN, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

NOTE IV. -1 

A. ASSETS (CONTINmD) 

2. Receivables 

Receivables as of the fiscal year ended September 30,2006 for the City's individual major funds and nonrnajor, internal 
service, and fiduciary funds in the aggregate, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as 
follows: 

Solid WatcrISewer k c l a ~ m e d  Stonnwster Gulf Nonrnajor 

General -- Utility . Waste - Marina Course and Other Tom! Water Un111y - 

Rccelvables: 

Accounts Billed 

Accounts Unhilled 

Special Assessments 

Liens Receivable 

Pledges Receivable 

Charges 

G m s  R~cr~vables 

Less: Allowance for 
Uncollcctlhles 

Net Total Recc~vables 

As the operator of Refuse Collection, Utilities, Marina and Golf Course programs, the City grants credit to their 
customers, substantially all of whom are City residents. The allowance for uncollectible accounts itl the Enterprise Funds 
relates to unpaid assessments and accounts receivable. 



CITY OF DUNEDIN, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STAEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

NOTE IV. DETAlL NOTES - ALL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT CROUPS lCONTlNUED1 

A. ASSETS (CONTKNUIEI)) 

2. Receivables (continued) 

Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that are not considered to be 
available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. Governmental funds also defer revenue recognition in connection 
with resources that have been received, but not yet earned. At the end of the current fiscal year, the unearned revenue 
reported in the governmental funds were as follows: 

Total Unearned 
Revenue For 

General Harbor View Governmental 
Fund Dredging Fund Funds 

License fees not yet earned $ 90,151 $ - $ 90.151 

Assessments receivable 74,107 74,107 

Total %_a $ 74.107 $ 1~~ 

3. Due From Other Governments 

The follouing amounts were due from other governments as of September 30,2006. 

Name of Government AMOUNT 

Pinellas County, Florida 

State of Flonda 

Housing Authorities 

City of Clearwater 

TOTAL $- 



CITY OF DUNEDIN, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

NOTE IV,  DETAIL NOTES - ALL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GRO1.JFS (CONTIh'UED) 

A. ASSETS (CONTINUED) 

4. Capital assets 

Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended September 30,2006 was as follows: 

a. Primary Government 

Governmental Activities: 

Capital assets not being depreciated: 

Land 

Construction in Process 

Total Capital Assets not being depreciated 

Capital Assets beisg depreciated: 

Buildings 

Infrasrmcture 

Improvements other than buildings 

Machinery and equipment 

Total Capital Assets being depreciated 

Less Accumulated deprec~ation fur: 

Buildrigs 

Infrastructure 

Improvements other than buildings 

Machinery and Equipment 

Total Accumula?ed Depreciation 

Total Capital Assets being depreciated, net 

Governmental Activities Capital Assets, net 

Beginning 
Balance Increase -- Decrease 

Ending 

Balance 



C1N OF DUNEDIN, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

NOTE IV. DETAIL NOTES - ALL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT CROUPS (CONTINUED) 

A. ASSETS (CONTMUED) 

4. Capital assets (continued) 

Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2006 was as follows: 

b. Primary Government 

Beginning 
Balance -- Inmase Decrease 

Ending 
Balance 

Business-type Activities: 

Cap~tal assets not being depreciated: 

h d  $ 1,378,896 % - $ - $ 1,378,896 

Construction in Process 244.445 372.995 ( 129.207) 48R.233 

Total Capital Assets not being depreciated 1.623.34 1 372.995 (129,2071 1,867.1 29 

Capital Assets be~ng depreciated: 

Buildings 15.921,018 81,990 16,003,008 

Improvements other than build~ngs 89,721,631 2,744,266 (12,750) 92,453,148 

Machinery and equipment 2.191.428 322.5 1 1 18.162) 2,505,777 

Total Capital Assets being depreciatd 107.834.078 3.148.767 (20.9 12) 1 10,961.933 

Less Accumulatd depreciation for: 

Buildings (9,684,65 1 )  (793,45 7) - (10,478,108) 

Improvements other than build~ngs (39.354,798) (3,790,323) 12,756 (43,132,371) 

Machinery and Equipment (1,414,983) (25 1,222) 8.162 (1,658,0431 

Total Accumulated Depreciation (50,454.432) (4.835.002) 20.9 1 2 (55.268.523) 

Total Capital Assets being depreciated, net 57.379.646 - ( 1,686,235) 55.693.41 I 

Business-type Activities Capital Assets, net % $ 2 . 9 8 7  u(1.3 L3240) .Jlp%z&!) Lzcua&U 

$129,207 in Construction in Progress was transferred to other capital asset categories during the fiscal year ended 
September 30,2006. 



CITY OF DUNEDIN, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

NOTE IV. DETAIL NOTES - ALL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS ICONTINUED) 

A. ASSETS (CONTINUED) 

4. Capital assets (continued) 

C. Depreciation 

Depreciation expense was charged to hctions/programs of the primary government as follows: 

Governmental Activities: 

General government $ 705,666 

Public safety 85 8,856 

Transportation 270,439 

CuIture and recreation 1,714.856 

Total depreciation expense - Governmental Activities -7 

Business-type Activities: 

Solid waste 

Waterisewer utility 

Redaimed water 

Stormwater utility 

Marina 

Golf Course 

Total depreciation expense - Business-type Activities 



CITY OF DUNEDIN, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

NOTE I V .  DETAlL NOTES - ALL F ' U N D m  

A. ASSETS (CONTINUED) 

4. Capital assets (continued) 

d. Construction conmacts. 
The City has entered into contracts for the construction of its general fixed assets as follows: 

Septembe~ 30.2006 

ESTIMATED CONSTRUCTION 
CONTRACT IN 
AMOUNT PROGRESS 

Governmental Activities: 

T h e  City continued the construct ion of the new 
Community Center. This project was completed on 
December 1,2006. $ 9,800,000 $ 8,464,161 

The City has completed the design for a new skate park 
at the MLK Recreation Center. I l e  City anticipates that 
it will enter a contract to have the park constructed by 
June 2007. 542.000 

The City has begun the process of desigrung various 
improvements to Edgewater Park. 

The City has begun the process of &g various 
improvements to the Wilson S ~ e e t  Piermark area. 

The City has entered into a contract to renovate Fire 
Station #62 and to add an additional bunhoom 

Total Governmental Activities 



ClW OF DUNEDIN, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

NOTEJV. r l  

A. ASSETS (CONTINUED) 

4. Capital assets (continued) 

d. Construction contracts (continued) 

The City has entered into contmcts for the construction of Business-type Activities assets as follows: 

September 30. 2006 

Utility Fund: 

ESTIMATED CONSTRUCTION 
CONTRACT m 
AMOUNT PROGRESS 

The City is in the process of entering into a 
contract to upgrade the Victoria Drive area 
waterline. $ 80,000 $ 24,220 

The City has continued to work on a project to 
q r o v e  its micro filtration system 25.000 21,931 

Total I Jtility Fund $ 105,000 $_ ALLTI 

Stormwater Fund 
The City has contracted with a consultant to 
begin the process of improvements to Curlew 
Creek Channel A. 3 2,036,929 $ 160,321 

The City has begun to make improvements to 
the Healher Lake Ditch. 100,000 

The City has entered into a conhact with 
Rowland, Inc. for the installation of a 
Stomwater fdtrafjon unj t a1 Baywood Drive in 
fiscal year 06/07. 205,000 

The City has entered into a contract with TBE 
Group for engineering services related to the 
restoration of Harmock Park. 1,905,,000 2 10.259 

Total Stormwater Fund $ 4.246,929 -7 

Reclaimed Water Fund 
The City has entered into a contract with US 
Water Services to replace various reclaimed 
~ a t e r  p q s .  S 370,000 $ 33,54 t 

Total Reclaimed Water Fund w s 



CITY OF DUNEDIN, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

NOTE W .  DETAIL NOTES - ALL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS- 

A. ASSETS (CONTINUED) 

4. Capital assets (continued) 

e. Construction contracts (continued) 

St Andrew Golf Course Fund: 

ESTIMATED CONSTRUCTION 
CONTRACT IN 
AMOUNT PROGRESS 

The City has begun the process of building a 
new metal storage building at SI. Andrew Links 
Golf Course. $ 70,000 $ 26.973 

Total St. Andrtws Golf Course Fund $ 70:000 $ 2d974 

TOTAL ENTERPRISE FUNDS m L A  



CITY OF DUNEDIN, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

NOTE IV. DETAIL N N T  GROUPS (CONTINUED) 

A. ASSETS (CONTINUED) 

5. Interfund receivables, payables, and transfers 

The corllpositioo of interfund balances ns of September 30, 2006, i s  a5 follnws: 

Interfund transfers 

Transfm In: 

Tra~rpfe~s Out: 
Fkcla~rned Golf Non Major Inkrnai 

General C o u r , ~  Governmenbl &p&g - Total 

General $ - $ - S - S - 5 1,553,591 S 730,505 $ 2,284,046 

One Cenf Sales Tax 234,168 234,1611 

Total transfers ~ 1 2 5 5 0 0 $ 4 4 3 . 0 0 0  3 ~ = @ u Q ~ 9 2 . Y 8 8 ~ ~ ~  

6. Advances TolFrom Other Funds 

Advances Porn Other Funds 

Fu_nd a 
Advanccs to Othcr Funds 

E& Amount 

Gcneral $ 108.227 

Lelsure Services Capital Improvement 53,183 

Golf Course % S161.410 

The City Commission bas determined that interest will not be accrued on this Advance. 

B. 1 ,ONGTERM DEBT 

The following changes occurred in long-term debt during the fiscal year ended September 30, 2006: 

1. Capital Leases 

On April 18, 2001, the City entered into a lease-purchase agreement to finance $696,102 in vehcles. This five-year 
capical lease has a 4.26% interest rate and provides for annual payments of $152,524. 

On March 5,2002, the City entered into a lease-purchase agreement to finance $1,72 1,143 in vehicles. Ths five-year 
capita1 [ease has a 3.3% interest rate and provides for annual payments of $379,094. 



C l N  OF DUNEDIN, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

NOTE IV. D E ' T A I U  ACCOUNT GROUPS {CONTINUED) 

B. LONG-TERM DEBT (continued) 

1. Capital Leases (continued) 

On December 30,2002, the City entered into a lease purchase agreement to finance $795,9 12 in vehicles. I h s  five-year 
capital lease has a 2.4 1% interest rate and provides for m u a l  payments of $170,874. 

On February 19,2004 the City entered into a lease-purchase agreement to finance $303,552 in vehicles. T h s  five-year 
capital lease has a 2.78% interest rate and provides for annual payments of $65,866. 

On December 3 I, 2003, the City entered into two lease-purchase agreements for two mailing machines. The four-year 
capital leases financed miling machines with costs of$80,404 and $16,966. Those leases have a 7.1% interest rate and 
provide for annual payments of $17,388 and $6,132, respectively. 

The future minimum lease obligations and the net present value of these minimum lease payments at September 30, 
2006 were as follows: 

Governmental 
Activities 

Total minimum lease payments 

Less: amount representing interest 

Present value of minimum lease payments 



CITY OF DUNEDIN, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

NOTE 1V. DETAIL NOTES - ALL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS {CONTINUED) 

B. LONG-TERM DEBT (continued) 

2. Special Assessments 

a. Drainage Assessment Revenue Note, Series 1998 - Harbor View V~llas Subdivision 

During thc fiscal year ended September 30, 1998, the City undertook a special assessment project for the dredging of 
certain canals within the Harbor View Villas Subdivision. Terms of hs speciat assessment require that the cost of 
th~s project will be levied against the properties benefited. The total cost of this project and the related special 
assessment was $696,563. The repayment terms of h s  assessment are summarized as follows: 

The Assessment may be paid at any time within t h t y  days after the project is completed or 

the Assessment may be paid in ten equal annual installments with interest at the rate of five and three- 
quarters percent. The first payment of h s  assessment was due in fiscal year 1998-1999 md ma11 be 
included in the ad valorem tax bill issued by the Pinellas County, Florida tax collector. 

In September 1998 the City issued a Drainage Assessment Revenue Note, Series 1998 for $600,000 to Finance the above 
project. Repayment for th~s note is from drainage assessment revenues. Drainage assessment revenues received from 
Harbor View Villas residents assessed for the respective benefitedproperties are leined and pledged as collateral. In the 
event that Drainage Assessment Revenues are not suflicient to cover the indebtedness, the note is also secured by a 
pledge of the proceeds generated by the One Cent Infrastructure Sales Surtax. 

Repayment terms: 

The t e n q  interest rate and payments are as follows: 

Original Amount Issued: $ 600,000 

Final Maturity: September 17,2008 

Interest Rate: 
Years 1 - 5 
Years6- 10 

Annual payments: 
Years 1 - 5 

Years 6 - 10 

4.75% 
55.88% of SunTrust Bank Prime Rate on September 17,2003 

$ 76,776 
$ 76,776 (assuming no change in rates) 

Amount Oirtstanding at 
September 30,2006: m 



CITY OF DUNEDIN, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

NOTE IV. 

B. LONGTERM DEBT (CONTINUED] 

2. Sppcial Assessments (continued) 

b. Promissory Note, Series 2002A Spanish Trails Subdivision 

During the fiscal year ended September 30, 2002, the City undertook a special assessment project to install a sanitary 
sewer system in tbe Spanish Trails Subdivision. Terms of thls special assessment require that the cost of h i s  project will 
be levied against the properties benefited. The total cost of th~s project is anticipated to cost more than the related special 
assessment of $759,000. The repayment terms of this assessment are summarized as follows: 

The assessment may be paid at any time w i h  thirty days after the project is completed or 

The Assessment may be paid in ten equal amual installments with interest at the rate of five and three- 
quarters percent. The first payment of this assessment wilt be due in fiscal year 2002-2003 and will be 
included in the ad vaIorern tax bill issued by the Pinellas County, Florida tax collector. 

On May 3,2002, the City issued a Promissory Note, Series 2002A for $759,000 to partially finance the above project. 
Repayment for this note is fiom sanitary sewer assessment revenues. 

Sanitary sewer assessment revenues received fiom Spanish Trails residents assessed for the respective benefited 
properties are leined and pledged as collateral. In the event that Sanitary Sewer Assessment Revenues are not sufficientto 
cover the indebtedness, the note is also secured by a pledge of the proceeds from other non-ad valorem revenues. 

Repayment terms: 

The term, interest rate and payments are as follows: 

Original h u n t  Issued: $ 759,000 

Final Maturity: May 3,2012 

Interest Rate: 4.65% 

Annual payments : $ 96,953 

Amount Outstanding at 
September 30,2006: %496.003 



CITY OF DUNEDIN, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

NOTE IV. DETAIL NOTE3 - ALL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS ICONTINWD) 

B. LONGTERM DEBT (CONTINUED) 

2. Special Assessments (continued) 

c. The schedule of future debt service requirements for assessment bonds at September 30,2006 were as follows: 

Governmental Activities Business-me Activities 

Principal Interest Principal Interest 

$ 69,976 $ 6,800 $ 73,566 $ 23,064 

63,8 16 3,715 76,987 19,643 

80,567 16,063 

M, 147 13,483 

3. Revenue Bonds 

a. Spring Training FaciIity Revenue Notes, Series 2001 

On March 30, 2001, the Commission approved Resolution 01 - 14. Stadium and Recreation Facilities Financing 
Amendment, a resolution which amended Resolution 01 -1  0. Thls resolution authorized the issuance of City revenue 
notes (spring training facility) series 2001A, series 2001 B and series 2001C in the principal amounts of $6,000,000, 
$1,700,000 and $4,300,000, respectively. These revenue notes are to frnance the cost of renovation, construction and 
improvements to the City's existing baseball training facilities. As part of the financing of the Stadium and Recreational 
Facilities, the CiQ has commitments for funding from Pinellas County ($3,000,000) and from the State of Florida 
($6,000,000). 

Ihe rqayrnent of the notes will be €ram pledged revenues consisting of State payments, County payments and 
Guaranteed Entitlement Revenues (Non-Ad Valorem). 

Annual Payment Requirement $ 1,075,184 
(Principal and interest) 

Less annual amount provided by: 
State (500,000) 
County (297.9801 

City's portion m 



CITY OF DUNEDIN, FLORIDA 
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SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

NOTE TV. DETAlL NOTES - ALL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS (COHTTNUED) 

B. LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED) 

3. Revenue Bonds (continued) 

Repayment terms: 

The tern ,  tnterest rates and annual payments for the three revenue notes are as follows: 

200 1 A 2001B 200 1 C 

Original Amount Issued: &=!uam@ %_1.700.000 $4.300,00Q 

urn Fwal Maturity: 1,2016 April - 1.2016 

Interest Rates: e6% 476% G5% 

Monthly Payments %38.427 $13.220 L3=L!2z 

Amount Outstanding at 
September 30,2006 $4.876.637 2 1.219.185 $ 3.211,423 

h. Toronto Blue Jays Revenue Note, Series 2002: 

During fiscal year 200 1 -2002, the City incurred additional costs to construct the Spring Trainiug Facilities. The City 
issued the Toronto Blue Jays Revenue Note to partially finance the above project on September 6, 2002. 

Lease revenues horn the Toronto Blue Jays are pledged as collateral. 

Repayment tern:  

The term, interest rate and payments are as fo11ows: 

Original Amount Issued: % 250,000 

Final Maturity: July 1, 2017 

Interest Rate: 5.00% 

Annual payments: 
Year 1 $ 21.791 
Years2- 15 $ 24,086 

Amount Outstanding at 
September 30,2006 L200.065 



CITY OF DUNEDIN, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

NOTE W .  DETAIL NOTES - ALL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS (CONTINUED1 

B. LONG-TERM DEBT ( C O N T m D )  

3. Revenue Bonds (continued) 

c. Capital Improvement Revenue Note, Series 2002: 

On September 19,2002, the Commission approved Resolution 02-36. Th~s resolution authorized the issuance of City 
revenue notes for milling and resurfacing approximately 36,000 square feet of concrete pavement on Palm Boulevard. 
Scope also includes a continuous asphalt rubber membrane interlayer, miscellaneous curb replacement, storm drainage 
upgrades and median island modifications. The City is required to establish and maintain a fund to manage the debt 
service (Cap~tal lirrprovement Revenue Note, Series 2002 Debt Service Fund), which had no activity in the current fiscal 
year. Non-ad valorem revenues and funds in the debt service fund are pledged as collateral. 

Funds of the Debt Service Fund are re uired to be continuousl secured in the same manner as State and m c i p a l  
deposits are requ~red to be secured by t%e laws of the State of F r onda. 

Repayment terms: 

The term, interest rate and payments are as follows: 

Original Amount Issued: $ 943,904 

Final Maturity: October 1,2012 

Interest Rate: 3.48% 

Annual payments: $ 113,498 

Amount Outstanding at September 30,2006 $694.510 

d. Cap~tal Improvement Revenue Note, Series 2003: 

On October 1 6,2003, the Commission approved Resolution 03-38. Thls resolution authorized the issuance of a capital 
improvement note, Series 2003 of the City and execution and delivery of  a loan agreement of $4,900,000 between h e  
City and the Bank of America, N.A. The interest rate on this loan is  3.37%. 

The loan is for the financing of the acquisition of land and construetian of the Stirling Recreation Center. The City's 
Sales Tax Revenues are pledged as collateral. 

Repayment terms: 

The term, interest rate and payments are as follows: 

Original Amount Issued: $ 4,900,000 

Final Maturity: November I ,  201 3 

Interest Rate: 3.37% 

Annual payments: $ 585,806 

Amount Outstanding at September 30,2006: sk=2&G32 
C-3 1 
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SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

NOTE IV. DETAIL NOTES - ALL F U N D S  AND ACCOUNT GROUPS (CONTINUED) 

B. LONGTERM DEBT (CONTINUED) 

3. Revenue Bonds (continued) 

On July 7,2005, the Commission adopted Resolution 05-22. The Resolution authorized the issuance of $10 million of 
Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2005. These bonds are intended to pay the cost of the acquisition, construction, 
equipping and installation of a new City Community Center and other capital projects. The City's Sales Tax Revenues 
are pledged as collateral. 

Repayment terms: 

The term, interest rate and payments are as follows: 

Original Amount Issued: $10,000,000 

Final Maturity: October 1,2025 

Interest Rate: 3.0% - 4.125% 

Annual Payments : $750,000 

Amount Outstanding at September 30,2006 ~ Q J ! Q ! l  

f. Utility Fund - Utility System Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 1993: 

OnOctober 5,1993, the City issued $25,275,000 ofutility SystemRefundmg RevenueBonds, Series 1993, torefund the 
Utility System Revenue Bands, Series 1989. Bonds are payable and secured by a lien on and pledge of certain funds 
provided by resolution, net revenues of the City's Utility System (consisting ofthe City's Water, Sewer, Reclaimed Water 
and Stormwater systems) and proceeds of the One-Cent Sales Tax. 

The Utility System Refundmg Revenue Bonds resotution provides for: 

Establishment and Maintenance of Various Funds: 

Revenue Fund records all operating revenues and expenses of the system 

Debt Service Fund records the principal, interest and slnking fund requirements. 

Reserve Fund, a reserve fund policy held for the maximum annual debt service requirement. 

Renewal, Replacement and lrrrprovement Fund records payments for the cost of extensions, enlargements or additions, or 
the replacement of capital assets and emergency repairs thereto. 
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NOTE IV. v l  

B. LONGTERM DEBT (CONTINUJCD) 

3. Revenue Bonds (continued) 

f. Utility Fund - Utility System Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 1993 (continued): 

Restrictions on the Use of Cash From Operations in Order of Priority: 

Deposits are made to the Revenue Fund to meet current operations according to the existing bond ordinance. 

Deposits to the Debt Service Fund are required each month in an amount equal to one-sixth ( I /6) of the lnteres t 
corning due on the next semi-annual interest payment date, and one-twelfth (1112) of the principal coming due 
on the next principal payment date. 

Deposits to the Renewal, Replacement and Lmprovement Fund are required each manth equal to one-twel fth 
(11 12) af 5% of the gross revenues of the water and sewer system for the preceding fiscal year. No further 
deposits will be required after the deposit reaches the amount of $200,000. 

Early Redemption: 

The bond resolution provides for early redemption, at the option of the City, of the Serial Bonds maturing on 
October I ,  2003, and thereafter at call rates varylng from 102% to 100% of the principal amount, dependent 
upon the call date. 

The Term Bonds maturing on October 1 ,  2010 and 2014, may, at the option of the City, be called for 
redemption on October 1,2005 at redemption prices equal to the principal amount thereof without premium 

Investment Restrictions: 

Monies on deposit shall be continuously secured in the same manner as state and municipal depouts are 
authorized to be secured by the laws of the State of Florida. 

On October of 2003, the City issued $4,155,000 of Utility System Refunding Bonds. Series 2003 to refund a portion of 
the Utility SystemRevenue Bonds, Series 1993. Bonds are payable and secured by a lien on and pledge ofcertain funds 
provided by resolution, net revenues of the City's Utility System and proceeds of the One-Cent Sales Tax. 

On January 17, 2006, the City issued $3,225,000 of Utility Systcm Refunding Bonds, Series 2006 to refund the Utility 
System Revenue Bonds, Series 1993. Bonds are payable and secured by a lien on and pledge of certain funds provided 
by resolution, net revenues of the City's Utility System (consisting of the City's Water, Sewer, Reclaimed Water and 
Stormwater systems) a d  proceeds of the One-Cent Sales Tax. $3, i55,000 of the Series 1993 bonds were refunded. 
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NOTE TV. DETAIL NOTES - ALL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS (CONTLNUEDI 

B. LONGTERM DEBT (CONTINUED) 

3, Revenue Bonds (con tinned) 

f. Utility Fund - Utility System Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 1993 (continued): 

Repayment terms: 

The term, interest rate and payments are as follows: 

Original Amount Issued: $ 25,275,000 

Final Maturity: October 1,2014 

Interest Rate: 2.60% to 6.75% 

Annual principal payments: $ 930,000 to $1,610,000 

Arnounb Outstanding at 
September 330,2006 
Series 1993 
Series 2003 
Series 2006 

Total % 11.735.0Q) 

g. Reclaimed Water Fund - Utility System Revenue Note, Series 1994: 

On October 6, 1994, the City obtained a $5,000,000 Revenue Note from SunTrust Bank of Tampa Bay to purchase and 
install Reclaimed Water Distribution and service lines, meters and related equipment. Note proceeds were provided as 
construction occurred and as the City requested up to, and including, October 1, 1999. On October 15, 1999, the bank 
extended that draw period from October 1, 1999 to October 1, 2003. All other terms and conditions remain in effect. 

Annual principal installments based on a 20-year faed principal amortization are due from October 1 ,  1995 through 
October 1 ,  2014. The principal due shall vary up to, and includmg October 1 ,  2003, based on the construction draws. 

Interest at a rate of 5.20% is payable monthly up to October 1,2002. From October 1,2002 through October 1,2014, 
level monthly amortization of principal and interest shall occur with the monthly payment being adjusted for interest rate 
adjusbnents on October 1,2002,2005,2008 and 201 1 .  

The Utility System Revenue Note resolution provides for: 

Establisllment and Maintenance of Various Funds 

Construction Fund records all note proceeds and related construction expense. 

Advances 

Advances shall occur monthly in minimum increments of $50,000 to pay for project costs, costs of issuance or 
other related incidental costs. 
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NOTE IV. DETAIL NOTES - ALL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS [CONTINUED) 

B. LONG-TERM DEBT {CONTINUED) 

3. Revenue Bonds (continued) 

g- Reclaimed Water Fund - Utility System Revenue Note, Series 1994 (continued): 

Early Redemption 

The note resolution provides for earIy redemption, at the option of the City, in mininm increments of 
$100,000 on the first day of any month. 

Parity 

This note is designated as an additional parity obligation to the Utility System Refunding Revenue Bonds, 
Series 1 99 3. 

Repayment terms: 

The term, interest rate and payments are as follows: 

Original Amount Issued to date: $ 3,427,703 

Final Maturity: October 1, 20 14 

Interest Rate: 

Interest Rate: 

5.20%, subject to adjustment on 
October 1,2008 and 201 1 

5.2094, subject to adjustment on 
October 1,2008 and 20 1 1 

Annual payments : % 283,095 

Amount Outstanding at 
September 30,2006: 
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NOTE IV. DETAIL NOTES - ALL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS (CONTINCTED) 

B. LONGTERM DEBT (CONTINUED) 

3. Revenue Bonds (continued) 

h. Debt service requirements 

Revenue bond debt service requirements to maturity are as follows: 

2007 

2008 

2009 

2010 

201 1 - 2015 

2016 - 2026 

202 I - 2026 

Total 

Governmental Activities 
Principal Lnterest 

$ 1,489,998 $ 1,014,591 

1,564,677 95 1,973 

1,629,760 885,054 

1,702,609 814,395 

7,455,746 2,8 12,578 

4,969,498 1,353,461 

4,022,085 - 488,773 

$22,334:373 - 

Business-tme Activities 
Principal Interest 

1. Refunded Issues 

The City presently has outstanding revenue bonds, which were refunded on October 5,  1993 as follows: 

1978 A Special Obligation 

SEPTEMBER 30.2006 

% 3.440.0QQ 

Since U.S. Government obligations are held in escrow for payment and interest, these bonds are not liabilities of the Clry. 
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NOTE 1V. 

B. LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED) 

4. Changes in long-term liabilities 

Long-term liability activities for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2006: 

Beginning Ending Due Within 
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year 

Governmental Activities: 
Capital leases 

Special xsessment debt with 
governmental commitment 200,688 (66.896) 133,792 66,896 

Mongage norc 3,900,000 (I ,050,000) 7,650.000 2,850,000 

Bonds payable 
Revenue bonds 

Estimated claims and 
ludgments 

Compensated absences 1.476.864 (1 30.663) 1 , 3 6 2 0  1 

Governmental activity 
long-term liabilities %27.972.044%- % 28,680351 5 4.997.413 

Business-type activities: 
Special assessment debt with 
government commitment $ 566.301 f $ (70,2981 $ 496.003 $ 73.566 

Bonds payable 
Revenue bonds 

Deferred amounts: 
For issuance premiums 3 11,336 (34,704) 277,63 2 

On refunding 11,49 1 .SO41 101,755 (1,390,0491 

Total ut111ty system 
revenue bonds 1 3 -548.5 1 3 3.225.000 14.376.3 121 12.397.1 96 1.3 18.36s 

Compensated absences 9 1 2,496 I3 1,055) 881,441 

Bus~ness-type activity 
long-term liab~lit~es $15.027.310- $==&&um %(4,477.6701- 
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SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

NOTE W .  DETAIL NOTES -ALL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS (CONTINUED1 

B. LONGTERWI DEBT (CONTLYUED) 

4. Changes in long-term liabilities (continued) 

Internal service funds serve governmental and enterprise funds. Accordingly, long-term liabilities for them are included 
as part of the above totals for governmental and business-type activities. At year-end $269,987 of internal service funds 
compensated absences are included in the above amounts. Also, for the governmental activities, compensated absences 
are generally liquidated by the general fund. 

5. Mease Hospital Revenue Refunding Bonds 

Resolution 93-15 approved the issuance of $86,810,000 aggregate principaI amount of the City's Hospital Revenue 
Refunding Bonds pursuant to the Florida Industria I Development Financing Act. The Trustees of Mease Hospital, h c .  
d/b/a ("Mease Hospital Care (the "Hospital"] is undcrtakmg a project (the "1993 Projecti') consisting generally of 
advance refunding all or a portion of the outstanding City of Dunedin, Florida Hospital Refunding Bonds, Series 1985 
(Mease Health Care) and all or a portion of the outstanding City of Dunedin, Florida Hospital Revenue Bonds, Series 
1991 (Mease Health Care) (collectively, the "Refunded Bonds"). 

T h e  1993 bonds were issued as a series of "additional bonds'' pursuant to a Trust Indenture dated July 1, 1985, and 
amended as of August L ,  1991 and March I ,  1993, which provides that such bonds shall not be deemed to constitute a 
debt, liability or obligation of the City or a pledge of the faith and credit of the City of Dunedin. 

The Mease Hospital Revenue Refunding Bonds were redeemed by the Hospital on November 18,2003. 
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V. OTHER INFORh3ATION 

A. PENSION 

1. Florida Retirement System 

Plan Description: All of the City's nonuniformed full-time employees (hired before January 1, 1996) participate in the 
Florida Retirement System (FRS), a non-contributory cost-sharing, multiple-empioyer public employee retirement 
system. 

T h e  City of Dunedin contributes to the FRS for the benefit of these employees. Thls retirement system is adrrumstered by 
the Florida D e p m e n t  of Management Services, Division of Retirement. 

FRS provides retirement and disability benefits, annuai cost-of-living adjusments, and death benefits to plan members 
and beneficraries. Chapter 121 of the Florida Statutes assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to 
the Department of Management Services through the Division of Retirement. The FRS issues a publicly available 
financial report that includes financial statements and required supplemenmy information for FRS. That report may be 
obtained by writing to: State of Florida, Division of Retirement, 3639-C North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, FL 32399- 
1560. 

Funding policy: The FRS funding policy provides for monthly employer contributions at actuarially deterrmned rates 
that, expressed as percentages of annual covered payroll are adequate to accumulate sufficient assets to pay benefits when 
due. Level percentage of payroll employer contribution rates, established by state law, are determined using the entry- 
age actuarial funding method. Fume plan benefit changes, assumption changes, and methodology changes are amrtized 
w i h  30 years, using level dollar amounts. Except for gains reserved for rate stabilization. future actuari a1 gains and 
losses are amortized on a rolling 10% basis, as a level dollar amount. 

Deferred Retirement Option Program 

The FRS Deferred Retirement Option Program (DROP) is available under the FRS Pension Plan when the nlember first 
reaches eligibility far n o m l  retirement. DROP allows a member to retire while continuing employment for up to 60 
months. While in DROP, the member's retirement benefits (increased by a cost-of-living adjustment each July) 
accumulate in the FRS Trust Fund and earn interest compounded monthly, equivalent to aneffechve annualrate of 6.596. 

The election to participate in DROP must be made u i h  12 months of the member's normal retirement date, unless the 
member is eligible to defer the election. To participate for the maximum DROP period, the member must enter DROP 
upm first reaching eligibility for normal retirement, or upon reaching an eligible deferral date as described below: 

A member of the Regular Class, Elected Officers' Class, or the Senior Management Service Class 
who reaches his or her normal retirement date before reachmg age 57 nlay defer DROP e n q  until age 
57 and still participate for 60 months. 
A member of the Elected Officers' Class who reaches his or her normal retirement date during a term 
of office may defer the DROP election until the next succeeding term in that office and still participate 
for up to 60 months or until the end of the succeeding term, whichever is less. 
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V. OTHER INFORMATION ICONTINUED) 

A. PENSION (CONTINUED) 

1. Florida Retirement System (continued) 

Upon termination, the DROP account is paid out as a lump-sum payment, a rollover, or a combination partial lump-sum 
payment and rollover, and monthly benefits are paid to the member in the amount as calculated upon entry into DROP, 
plus cost-of-living adjustments for intervening years. 

In most cases, the DROP participant must cease employment after a maximum of 60 months in DROP, must satisfy [he 
termination requiremen& for retirement, and is subject to reemployment restrictions thereafter. However, effective July 
1, 2002, a DROP participant who holds an elective office covered by the Elected Officers' Class may end DROP 
participation and postpone compliance with termination requirements and reemployment limitations until he or she no 
longer holds the elective office (including consecutive terms in the same office). For the period of time between the end 
of DROP participation and termination, no retirement credit is earned and the member's DROP accumulsthon accrues no 
additional monthly benefits (but continues to earn interest). 

Employers pay contributions at a rate of 10.9 1 % of salary for all DROP participants as of September 30, 2006. 

Retirement benefits and the City's contributions rates are summarized as follows: 

c i n  C O N T R ~ B U T I ~ N S  RATE 
ACTUAIUALLY DETERMINED 

EMPLOYER EMPLOYER 
CONTRIBU~ON CONTRIBUTION 

RATES RATES 
MEMBERSHIP BEGINNING THROUGH 

CATEGORY RETIKEMENT BENEFIT VESTING JULY 1.2006 JUNE 30.2006 

Regular 1.6% times years of service After 6 9.85% of covered 7.83% of covered 
times average compensation (5 years of payroll payrol i 
highest years) if age 62 or 30 creditable 
years of service at any age. service. 

Elected State, 1.6% times years of service After 6 13.12% of covered 10.45% of covered 
County and City times average cornpensation (5 years of payroll payroll 
Officers highest years) if age 62 or 30 creditable 

years of service at any age. service. 
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V. OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 

A. PENSION (CONTINUED) 

1. Florida Retirement System (continued) 

The City's contribution includes 1 .1  1 % for a post-retirement health insurance subsidy. FRS also provides disability and 
survivors benefits. Benefits are established by Florida State Statute. The contribution requirements of employers are 
established and may be amended by the Division of Retirement. The City's contributions and its required contributions 
for the past three years are summarized as follows: 

Year Ended Required Contribution Percentage Contributed 

September 30,2006 

September 30,2005 

September 30,2004 

September 30,2003 

September 30,2002 

September 30,200 1 

September 30,2000 

2. Firefighters' Retirement Fund 

All of the City's full-time fue employees participate in a separate single-employer, defined benefit pension plan. 

Current membership in the Plan is summarized as follows: 

Retirees and beneficiaries currently 
receiving benefits 

Drop retirees 2 

Terminated plan members entitled to but 
not yet receiving benefits 

Active plan members 

Fully Vested 13 

Nonvested 

Total 
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V. OTHER INFORMATION [CONTINUED1 

A. PENSION (CONTINUED) 

2. Firefighters' Retirement Fund (continued) 

Benefits for Firefighters are determined by category and length of service as follows: 

BENEFITS VESTING 

Norrnal retirement at age 55 with ten years of service, age 52 ARer ten years of creditable 
with 25 years of service, or completion of 20 years of credited service. 
service, 3.0% of final three year average annual compensation 
multiplied by years of service; reduced benefits for early 
retirement. 

Deferred Retirement Option Plan 

Any Plan participant who is eligible to receive a normal retirement pension may elect to part~cipate in a deferred 
retirement option plan (DROP) while continuing hs or her active employment as a firef gbter. Upon participation in the 
DROP, the participant becomes a retiree for all Plan purposes so that he or she ceases to accrue any M e r  benefits under 
the pension plan. Normal retirement payments that would have been payable to the participant as a result of retirement 
are accumulated and invested in the DROP to be distributed to the participant upon his or here termination of 
employment. Participation in the DROP ceases for a Plan participant after the earlier of 5 years or the attainment of 
lusher earliest normal retirement date. There were 2 members in the DROP as of  September 30, 2006. 

A portion of the plan net assets are designated for benefits that accrue in relation to the DROP accounts Allocations to 
the DROP accounts determined in the most recent annual actuarial valuation for the year ended September 30,2006 are 
as Follows: 

Designated plan net assets for DROP 
accounts (fully funded) $ 219,140 

Undesignated plan net assets 14,365,795 

Total plan net assets - 
The City of Dunedin Firef ghters' Retirement Plan issues a publicly available financial report that  includes financial 
statements and required supplementary ~nhrrnation for single employer pension plans. That report may be obtained by 
writing to: Earl "Sandy" Sanders, CPA, Finance Director, City of Dunedin, P.D. Box 1 348, Dunedh Florida 34697- 
1348. 
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V. OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 

A. PENSION (CONTINUED) 

2. Firefighters' Retirement Fund (continued) 

Basis of accounting is the method by whch revenues and expenses are recognized in the accounts and are reported in the 
financial statements. The accrual basis of accounting is used for the Plan. Under the accrual basis of accounting, 
revenues are recognized when they are earned and collection is reasonably assured, and expenses are recognized when 
the liability is incurred. Plan member contributions are recognized in the period in whch the cont~ibutions are due. City 
contributions to the plan, as calculated by the Plan's Actuary, are recognized as revenue when due and the City has made 
a formal commitment to ~rovide the contributions. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in 
accordance with the terms of the plan. 

Fbefighter conhibution rates are established at 5.5 percent of salary. A state excise tax rebate is also received from the 
State of Florida under Florida Statutes, Chapter 175 (C. 175) and the City in amounts sufficient to h d  the P tan at an 
actuarially determined rate specified by state statute, C. 175. 

The City's Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Obligations for the year ended September 30, 2006 is as follows: 

Annual required employer contributions $ 442,846 

Interest on net pension obl~gation 

Adjustment to annual required contribution 

Annual Pension cost 442,846 

Increase (decrease) in net pension obligation 

Net Pension obligation (credit), beginnmg of year - 

Net pension obligation (credit) end of year $ -- 

The annual required contribution for current year was determined as part of the September 30, 2005 (most recent) 
actuarial valuation using the entry age actuarial cost method. The actuarial assumptions included (a) 8.00% invesbnent 
rate of return (net of administrative expenses) and @) projected salary increases of 7.00% per year. Both (a) and (b) 
Included an inflation component of 3.50%. The assumptions did not include post-retirement benefit increases. 
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V. OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 

A. PENSION (CONTINUED) 

2. Firefighters' Retirement Fund (continued) 

The actuarial value of assets was determined using techmques that smooth the effects of short-term volatility in the 
market value of invesments over a five year period. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a 
level percentage of projected payroil on a closed basis. The remaining amortization periods at September 30,2006 was 
30 years. The Plan's three year trend information is summarized as follows: 

Three Year Trend Information 

Fiscal 
Year 

Ended - 

Annual 
Pens ion 

Cost [APC) 

Percentage Net 
of APC Pension 

Contributed Obligation 

The City has calculated its pension liability (asset) as of September 30,2006 in accordance wfh GASB Statement No. 
27. The City bad no pension liability (asset) as of September 30,2006 01 at the prior year-end (September 30,2005). 
The Plan' s table of required supplementary information is presented below: 
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V. OTHER INFORMATION ICONTINUED) 

A. PENSION (CONTINUED) 

2. Firefighters' Retirement Fund (continued) 

REOUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY IWFOMTION 

Schedule of Fundinp Proeress 

Actuarial 
Accrued (Funded) 

Actuarial Actuarial Liability Unfunded 
Valuation Value (m) AAL Funded Covered 

Date of Assets Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll 
October 1 (a) fi') fi-a) ah (c) 

UAAL as 

Percentage 
of Covered 

Payroll 
(b-a)/c 
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V. OTHER INFORMATION ICONTINUEDl 

A. PENSION (CONTINUED) 

2. Firefighters' Retirement Fund (continued) 

Schedule of Emloyer Contributions 

Year 
Ended 

&tember 30 

Annual 
Required 

Contribution 

Actual 
Percentage 
Coniri buted 

3. Defined Contribution Plan 

Beginning January 1, 1996, the City began providing retirement benefits for all of its full-time employees not covered 
under the Florida Retirement System or the Firefighters' Pension Plan through a non-contributory defined contribution 
plan admnistered by the ICMA under their prototype Profit-sharing Plan and Trust Agreement. At September 3 0,2006 
there were 270 Plan members in the defined contribution plan. Benefits depend solely on amounts conlributed to the 
Plan plus investment earnings. Employees are eligible to participate after one year of employment. The City's 
contributions for each employee (aud interest allocated to the employee's account) we fully vested after six years of 
continuous service. City contributiom for, and interest forfeited by, employees who leave employment before six years 
are used to reduce the City's current-period contribution requirement. Plan provisions and conmibution requirements are 
established and may be amended by the City Commission. 

The City's total payroll in fiscal year ended September 30, 2006 was $16,840,928. The City's contributions were 
calculated using the participant's salary amount of $7,467,520. The City made the required contribution of $736,752. 
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V. OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 

B. DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN 

The City offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 
457, as amended. Thls law stipulates that all assets and income ofthe plan must be held in trust for the exclusive benefit 
of the Plan participants and their beneficiaries. Although the City is the Trustee of the plan, the City has no administrative 
invoivement and performs no investing function for tbe plan and has not therefore, reported the plan in th~s financial 
report. 

The plan, available to all government employees, permits them to defer a portion of their salary until future years. 
Participation in the plan is optional. The deferred compensation is not available to employees until termination, 
retirement. death or unforeseeable emergency. 

C. SELF LNSURANCE PROGRAM 

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of assets; errors and 
omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. 

The City established a Self-Insurance Fund (an Internal Service Fund) to account for and finance its uninsured risk of 
loss. Under tkrs program, for the year ended September 30, 2006, the City utilizes this fund to self-insure its first 
$250,000 of property damage per occurrence (except wind, hail, and named storms, whlch has a deductible 0f5% oftotal 
location \value per building, subject to a minimumof $500,000), and its fust $250,000 ofany employee work injury. The 
City also self-insures all auto liability and the majority of general liability losses, except for Dunedin recreation summer 
camp and St. Andrews Lrnks Golf Course, where separate insurance policies are utilized. All claims for general liab~lity, 
automobile liability, and police professional liability of covered assets are included w i h  the City's Self-Insurance Fund. 
The city provides a11 of its employees' health insurance under a corrrmercial insurance plan. 

The City purchases commercial stop-loss insurance for claims in excess of coverage provided by the Fund and for other 
risks of loss. Settled claims have not surpassed the premiums for h s  commercial coverage for the last three fiscal years. 

All funds of the City participate in the program and make payments to the Self-Insurance Fund based on a current claims 
cost estimate to pay prior and current-year claims. The Self-hurance Fund has not billed for nor reestablished a reserve 
for any catastrophic losses. 



CITY OF DUNEDIN, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

V. =HER INFORMATION C C O N T m D )  

C. SELF INSURANCE PROGRAM (CONTINUED) 

The current claims liability of $605,224 reported in the Fund at September 30,2006, based on information identified 
prior to the issuance of the financial statements, indicates that is probable that a liability has been incurred at the date of 
the financial statements and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. These liabilities including IBNR 
(incurred but not reported claims) are based on the estimated ultimate cost of selling the claims (excluding the effects of 
~nflation and other societal and economic factors), using past experience adjusted for c m n t  Wnds and any other factors 
that would modify past experiences. Claims liabilities also include specific incremental claim adjustment expenses. As 
of January 22,2007, all of those covered liabilities are still outstanding. Changes in the Fund's claims Liability amount 
during the year ended September 30,2006, are as follows: 

Liability Balance Current Claim and Liability Liability Balance 
Se~tember 30,2005 Changes to Estimates Claim Pavments September 30,2006 

D. POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 

Other than the postretirement benefits described in Section V.A. 1, the City does not provide any postretirement health 
care benefits. 

Postemployment health care benefits are made available to the City's termimted employees in accordance with the 
Consolidated Onmibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1985 (COBRA). Under COBRA, the City is requ~red to offer an 
election to deceased or terminated participants, their spouses or dependents, to continue coverage in the health plan 
provided by the City. The cost of coverage whch the City may charge the participant may not exceed 102% of the 
applicable premium 



CITY OF DUNEDIN, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO FINANCWL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

V. OTHER INFORVATION (CONTINUED) 

E. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 

The City a f  Dunedin and other Pinellas County cities have entered into an agreement with PACT, Inc. and a local savings 
and loan institution to guarantee payment of a portion of the principal and interest on mortgage notes in the aggregate 
principal amount not to exceed $5,500,000. The notes were issued by PACT, Inc. for the purpose of assisting in the 
financing of a Performing Arts Center Theater which serves an area maximum including the City of Dunedin No 
payments would be due from the City until there was a foreclosure of the mortgage lien or title to the project had been 
acquired by the Lender, resulting in less than full payment of all amounts due. Demand shall have been made for all 
payrnents due by the other cities under the Guaranty Agreements between each such public body. The rmtes were issued 
for a period of 25 years in 1982. 

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjusmwnt by grantor agencies, 
principal1 y the State of Florida. Any disailowed c lairns, including amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of 
the applicable funds. The amount, if any. of expenditures whch may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined 
at h s  time, although the City expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial. Various other suits and claims, arising in 
the ordinary course of the City's operations, are pending against the City of Dunedin. These clainls consist of personal 
injury, discrimination, property damage and sales tax. The ultimate effect of such litigahon cannot be ascertained at this 
time, but are not expected to be material. 

F. FEDERAL AND STATF, GRANTS 

The City participates in a number of federal and state assisted programs, principal of whlch are the Federal Emergency 
Management Agency (FEMA), Recycling Grant, CDBG for Streetscape Project, and Local Law Enforcenlent Block 
Grant Program. These programs are subject to the financial and compliance audits made in accordance with the Ofice of 
Management and Budget Circular A-1 33. The audits of these programs for and inciuding the year ended September 30, 
2006 will be issued under a separate report. 'The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the 
granting agencies is immaterial to the City's Govenunent-wide Financial Statements. 



CITY OF DUNEDIN, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

VI. CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE COMMUNITY 
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY FUND ARE PRESENTED AS FOLLOWS: 

COhlMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY FUND 

BALANCE SHEET 
September 30,2006 

ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Prepaid items 
Accrued interest receivable 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable 
Contracts payable 
Deposits payable 

Total liabilities 

m n  BALANCE 

Unreserved, undesignated 

Total fund balance 

Total liabilities and fund balance 



CITY OF DUNEDIN, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

VI. CONDENSED F'INANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR TJ3E COMMUNITY 
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY FLrwD ARE PRESENTED AS FOLLOWS (CONTINUED): 

COMMUNITY RE1)EVELOPMENT AGENCY FUND 

STATEMENT OF REVEh'UES, 
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30,2006 

Taxes: 
Property 

Intergovernmental revenues 
Charges for services 
Fines and Forfeitures 
Impact fees 
Investment earnings (loss) 
Assessments 
Rents 
Other revenue 

Total revenues 

Current: 
Economic environment 

Capital projects: 
Economic environment 

Debt service: 
Principal 
Interest 

Total expenditures 

Excess of revenues 
over (under) expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES ('USES) 

Debt proceeds 
Transfers in 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Net change in fund balance 
Fund balance - beginning 
Fund balance - ending 



Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

Special Revenue Funds 

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the receipt, custody, and expenditure of revenues from 
specific sources for which the City is required legally to limit expenditures to particular uses and to account 
separately for these resources. 

Gwemment Grants Fund 

To account for Federal, State and County grants, the use of which is restricted for certain projects. 

Dunedin Stadium Fund 

To account for the receipt and disbursement of revenues from various rmreational activities as mandated 
upon the issuance of Capital Improvement Recreation Certificates. 

Impact Fees Fund 

To account for the receipt and disbursement of fees levied to pay for future parkland, fire department capital 
outlays, law enforcement capital outlays, and transportation capital outiays. This fund is also used to collect 
for and disburse to the County its share of transportation impact fees. 

Fine Arts Cemr Fund 

To account for the City's support to the Ounedin Fine Arts Center. This fund is fully supported by transfers 
from the General Fund. 

Community Redevelopment Agency Fund 

To account for the receipt, custody and expenditure of properly tax increment funds associated with related 
redevelopment projects. 

G. Koutswrias Youth Fund 

To account for the receipt and disbursement of donated monies for recreation capital improvement and 
maintenance programs at facilities owned and operated by the Cily. Any improvements funded in this 
manner will become the property of the City. 



Debt Service Funds 

Debt Sewice Funds are us& to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, general 
long-term debt principal and interest. 

Harbor View Oredging Debt Senrice Fund 

To accumulate monies from annual assessments levied on property owners for the payment of annual debt 
service applicable to Harbor View Villas. 

Capitat Improvement Debt Servica Fund 

To accumulate monies for the payment oi annual debt service applicable to the resurfacing of Palm 
Boulevard. 



Capital Projects Funds 

Capital Project Funds are used to account for resources to be used for acquisition or construction of major 
capital improvement projects. 

Stadurn Capital Pmject Fund 

To account for the receipt of taxable and nontaxable note proceeds, along with proper allocation 
between taxable and nontaxable construction expenditures. 

County Gas Tax Fund 

To amunt  for the costs of road and street improvements; funded by proceeds ofthe Pinellas County gas tax, 

Leisure Serviess Capital Improvement Fund 

To account for the renewal and replacement of recreation and parks equipment. 

Capitd improvement Fund 

To account for the acquisition of signifiwnt equipment items. These acquisitions are funded primarily by 
transfers from the General Fund. Nominal equipment acquisitions are accounted for in departmental 
budgets. 

lnfwmation Technology Prcrject Fund 

To account for the expenditures incurred to upgrade the City's Information Technology Infrastructure. The 
major funding source is through capltal lease proceeds. 



City of Dunedin, Florida 
Combining Balance Sheet 

Nonmajor Governmental Funds 
September 30,2006 

- 

Special Revenue 

Fine Community G. Special 

Government Dunedin Impact Arts Redevelopment Koutsourias Revenue 

Grants Stadium Fees Center Agency Youth Total 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash quivalents 5 306 $ 372,357 6 1.352.318 $ 495 $ 631.270 $ 23,018 f 2.379.704 

Accounts Rece~vabh 

Assessmentsll~ens receivable, net of 

allowance for unmllectibles 

Pledges rece~vable 

Due from other funds 
Due from other govwnments 
Prepa~d lterns 682 682 

Accrued ~nlsred mivable  1,728 (3) 3.045 11,550 

Depsils 500 500 

Advancss to other funds 
Restrided assets. 

Temporarily restr~ad: 

Cash and wsh equ~vakmts 

Acuued interest reoeivable 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES 

k w w r l s  payabls 
Contracts payable 

Deposits payable 

Deferred revenue 
Due to other funds 

Due to other governments 
Other current liabilites 

Total I~abilities 

Resewed for encumbrances 
Reserved fw public safety programs 
R e z e w d  for caprtal projects 

Reserved lor debt m i c a  
Unreserud, designated 
Unresswed, undes ig~ted  

Total fund balances 

Tota! I~abilities and fund baknces 
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City of Dunedin, Florida 

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures. and Changes in Fund Balances 
Nonmafor Governmental Funds 

For the FMcal Year Ended September 30,2006 

Special Revenue 

Fine Communtty G. Special 
Government Ounedin lmpact Arts Red wwlopment Koutsourias Revenue 

Taxes. 

PrnpertV 
Intergovernmental revenues 
Charges for services 
Flnes and Foeitures 
Impact lees 
Investment earnings (loss) 
Assessmenis 
Rents 
Contributions and donabons 
Other revenue 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Current 

General gwemrnent 
Public safety 
Physical envirmrnenl 
Transpartation 
Ewnornlc environment 
Culture and retreation 

Capital proleds. 
General pernrnent 
Publlc safety 
Plyslcal envlmnment 
Traosportaticm 
Emnornic enwmnment 
Culture and recreahm 

Debt service 
Ptinapal 
Interest 

Aids and grants 
Total expend~lures 

EKcess of revenues 
wer (under) expenditurn 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES IUSESl 
Debt prooeeds 
Tranders m 

Grants Stadlum Fees Center Agency Youth Tot. l 

Transfers out (1 25,000) (125.000) 
Total other financing sourms (uses) 174,203 136.589 4,50D.OW 4,810.792 

Net change in fund balances 
Fund balanm - beginning 

Fund belances -ending 



City of Dunedin, Florida 

Comblnlng Statement of Revenues, Expendauws, and Changes In Fund Balances 
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

For tne Flscal Year Ended September 30,2006 

Debt Sewice 

Debt 

Harbor View Capital Service 

REVENUB 
Taxes 

P W *  
lntergovemmental revenues 
Charges for services 
F lnes and forfeitures 
Impact fees 
Investment earnrngs 
Assessments 
Rents 
Contributions and donations 
Other rrwnue 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

General government 
Public safety 
Physk l  environment 
Transportah on 
Emnornic environment 
Culture and recreation 

Cap~Iml p r o l e :  
General government 
PuMic safeiy 
Physical environmml 
Transpwtation 
Emomic envirnnment 
Culture and recreation 

Debt servioe 
Prirapal 
Interest 

Aids and grants 
Total expenditures 

Excess of revenues 
aver (under) expendnures 

Transfers in 
Total olher finanang sources (uses) 

Net change In fund balances 
Fund balances - beginning 

Fund balances - ending 

Oredglng Improvement Total 



Clty of Dunedln, Florida 
Comblning Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

For Ule Fiscal Year Ended September 30.2006 

Leisure 
Stadlum County Servkes lnfonnablon Capital 

Capital Gas Capitat Capital Technolqy Projects 
Pmjecl Tax l m p r o ~  lrnpmvemsnt Pmject Total 

Grand Total 
Nonmajor 

Governmental 
Funds 

REVENUES 
Taxes' 

property 

Charges for services 
Fines and faderlures 
l m p d  fees 
Investment earnings 
Assessments 
Rents 
Contributions ana donalions 
Mher revenue 

Tdal revenues 

EXPENrnRES 
Cunenl, 

General governrent 
Pubk safety 
Physical envimnrnent 
Transportation 
Emrwrnk envimnment 

CuHure and m a t i o n  

Capilal pmjeds: 
General governrent 
Pubk sstlety 

P h y w l  envimnment 
Transportation 
Emnornic envimnmenf 
Cukure and cecrealion 

DeM service: 
Principal 
Interest 

Aids and grants 
Total expndkures 

Defluency of revenues 
over {under) expenditures 

Debt p m d s  
Transfers in 

Transfers out 
Total other iinanclng sources 

Net change In fund balances 
Fund balances - beginning 

Fund b e l a m  - ending 



City of Dunedin, Florida 

Government Grants Fund 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes In Fund Balances - Budget to Actual 

For the Flscal Year Ended September 30,2000 

Variance with 
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget - 

Positive 

Original Final Actual Amounts (Negatlva) 

REVENUES 

Intergovernmental revenues: 

Grants - federal 

Grants - state 

Grants - local 

Mjscellaneous revenues 

Interest earnings 

Contr~butions and donattons 

Other miscellaneous revenue 

Total revenues 

Current: 

Public safety 

Physical environment 

Culture and recreat~on 

Capital outlay: 

General government 

Publ~c safety 

Physical environment 

Culture and recreation 

Alds and grants 

Tolal expenditures 

Deficiency of revenues 

under expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
Transfers in 

Transfers out 

Total other financing sources 

Net change in fund balance 

Fund balances - beginning 

Fund balances - ending 



City of Dunedin, Florida 

Stadium Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget to Actual 

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30,2006 

REVENUES 
Charges for services: 

Blue Jay ticket sales 

Parkinglconcessions 

Specbal events 
Miscellaneous revenues: 

Interest earnings 
Other m~scellaneous revenue 

Total revenues 

Budgeted Amounts 

Variance with 

FLnal Budget - 
Positive 

Origlnal Final Actual Amounts (Negative) 

EXPENDITURES 
Current 

Cutture and recreation 

Concess~onslnovelties 
Recreation 

Capital outlay. 

Debt service 

Principal 

Interest 

Total expend~tures 

Excess of revenues 
over (under) expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 

Transfers out 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Net change In fund balances 

Fund balances - beginning 

Fund balances - ending 



City of Dunedin, Florida 

Impact Fees Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget to Actual 

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30,2006 

REVENUES 
Intergovernmental revenues: 

Transportation impact fees 
Grants - federal 

Grants - state 
Miscellaneous revenues. 

Land ded~cal~on fees 
Fire fac~lll~es fees 
Police Iacilitqes fees 
Inlerest earnings 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

Publ~c safety 

Transponatron 
Capital outlay' 

Publlc safety 
Transportation 
Culture and recreation 
Debt service 

Total expenditures 

Excess of revenues over expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING USES 
Transfers in 

Transfers out 
Total other financ~ng uses 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balances - beginning 

Fund balances - ending 

- 

Budaeled Amounts 
Variance with 
Final Budget - 

Positive 

Original Flnal Actual Amounts (Negative) 



City of Dunedln, Florlda 

Fine Arts Center Fund 
Schedule of Revenues, ExpendAures and Changes In Fund Balances - Budget to Actual 

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2006 

REVENUES 
Miscellaneous revenues: 

Interest earnings 
Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 

Current: 

Culture and recreation 

Capital- 

Culture and recreation 

Alds and grants 

Tdal  expenditures 

Excess of revenues over expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
Transfers in 

Total other financing sources 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balanws - beg~nning 

Fund balances - ending 

Budgeted Amounts 
Variance with 
Flnal Budgat - 

Positive 

Orlglnal Final Actual Amounts {Negative) 



City of Dunedin, Florida 
Community Redevelopment Agency Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditurn and Changes In Fund Balances - Budget to Actual 
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30,2006 

Varlance wlth 
Budgeted Amounts Final Budgmt - 

Posltlve 
Orlglnal Actual Amount6 

REVENUES 

Tares: 
Property 

Intergovernmental revenues. 
Grants - federal 

Grants - state 

Grants - local 
Miscellaneous revenues: 

Investment earnings 

Rent 
Contributions and donations 

Other revenues 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

Economic environment 

Capital projects: 
Economic environment 

Debt service: 
Principal 

Interest 

Aids and grants 

Total expenditures 
Deficiency of revenues 

over (under) expendilures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
Debt Proceeds 
Transfers in 

Total other financing sources 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balances - beginning 

Fund balances - ending 



City of Dunedin, Florida 

G. Koutsoumis Youth Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes In Fund Balances - Budget to Actual 

Far the Flscal Year Ended September 30, 2006 

REVENUES 
Miscellaneous revenues 

Investment earnings 
Contr~butions and donations 

Other revenues 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 

Current: 
Culture and recreation 

Capital projects: 

Economic environment 

Aids and grants 

Total expenditures 

Excess of revenues over expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

Debt procaeds 

Transfers in 

Total other f~nancing sources (uses) 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balances - beginning 

Fund balances - ending 

Budaeted Amounts 
Variance with 

Final Budget - 
Positive 

Original Final Actual Amounts (Negative) 



City of Dunedin, Florida 

Harbor View Dredging Debt Service 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget to Actual 
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30,2008 

REVENUES 

Taxes 

Property 

M~scellaneous revenues' 
Interest earnings 
Impact fees 

Total revenues 

EXpENDlTURES 
Current. 

Physical environment 

Debt service: 

Principal 

Interest 

Total expend~lures 
Deficiency of revenues 

under expendrtures 

Fund balances - beg~nning 

Fund balances - endlng 

Budgeted Amounts 
Variance with 
Final Budget - 

Positive 
Orlglnal Flnal Actual Amounts (Negative) 
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Clty of Dunedin, Flortda 
Capltal Improvement Debt Service Fund 

REVENUES 

Miscellaneous revenues 
Interest earnings 

Total revenues 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget to Actual 

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30,2006 

EXPENDITURE* 
Debt service: 

Principal 
Interest 

Tolal a~penditures 

Oehc~ency of revenues 
under expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
Transfers in 

Total other financing sources 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balances - beg~nning 

Fund balances - ending 

Budgeted Amounts 
Variance with 

Final Budget - 
Positive 

Original Flnal Actual Amounts [Negative) 



City of Dunedin, Florida 
Stadium Capltal Project Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes In Fund Balances -Budget to Actual 

For the Fiscal Year Ended Septftmber 30,2006 

Budgeted Amount6 
Variance with 

Final Budget - 
Podtive 

Origlnal Flnal Actual Amounts (Negative) 

REVENUES 

Miscellane~is revenues 
Interest earnings 

Total revenues 

Current: 

Culture and recreation 

Capit a! projects: 

Culture and recreation 
Total expenditures 

Deficiency of  revenues under expenditures 

OTHER FlHA-1 

Debt proceeds 

transfers In 
Transfers out 

Total other f~nancing sources (uses) 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balances - beginning 

Fund balances - ending 



City of Ounedin, Florida 

County Gas Tax Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget to Actual 
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2006 

REVENUES 

Intergovernmental revenues: 

Local option gas tax 

Frnes and forfeits 

M~scellaneous revenues: 
Interest earnings 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

Transportation 
Cap~tal projects: 

Transportation 
A ~ d s  and grants 

Total expendfiures 

Deficrency of revenues 
under expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers In 

Total other financ~ng sources 

Nel change in fund balances 

Funn balances - beginning 

Fund balances - ending 

Budgeted Amounts 
Variance with 

Final Budget - 
Positlve 

Origlnal Final Actual Amounts (Negative) 



City of Dunedin, Florida 

Leisure Services Capital improvement Fund 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes In Fund Balances - Budget to Actual 

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2006 

REVENUES 

Intergovernmental revenues: 

Grants - state 

Miscellaneous cevenues: 

Bona proceeds 
lnterest earnings 

Contributions 

Tolal revenues 

EXPENDITURES 

Current: 
General government 

Culture and recreat~on 
Capital outlay: 

Culture and recreation 

Ards and grants 
Debt service. 

Principal 

Interest 
Total expenditures 

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Debt proceeds 
Transfers in 

Transfers out 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balances - beginning 

Fund balances - ending 

Wdgeted Amounts 
Varianc~ with 

Final Budget - 
Posltlve 

Origlnal Flnal Actual Amounb (Negative) 



City of Dunedln, Flodda 
Capital Improvement Fund 

Schedule af Revenues, Expenditures and Changes In Fund Balances - Budget to Actual 

For the Flscal Year Ended September 30, 2006 

Variance with 
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget - 

Positlve 
Original Flnal Actual Amounts (Negative) 

REVENUES 
Miscellaneous revenues 

Interest earnlngs 

Contribut~ons 

Sale of &ed assets 
Other revenue 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 

Current: 

General government 

Public safety 
Physical environment 

Transportation 
Economic environment 

CuIture and recreat~on 

Capltal outlay 

General government 

Public safety 
Physical environment 

Transportation 

Economic environment 

Culture and recreation 

Debt senrice 
Principal 

Interest 

Total expenditures 

Def~c~ency of revenues under expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES1 
Transfers In 

Total other f~nancing sources (uses) 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balances - beginning 

Fund balances - ending 



Clly of Ounedin, Florida 
Information Technology Project Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes In Fund Balances - Budget to Actual 
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2006 

REVENUES 

Charges for services: 
Other charges for services 

Miscellaneous revenues: 

Interest earnlngs 
Other revenues 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 

Current, 

General government 
Cap~tal projects: 

General government 

Tolal expenditures 

Deficiency of revenues under expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES IUSES) 
Debt proceeds 
Operating transfers in 

Total other flnancing sources (uses) 

Net change In fund balances 

Fund balances - beginning 

Fund balances - ending 

- 

Budaeted Amounts 
Variance with 
Final Budget - 

Positive 

Origlnal Flnal Actual Amounts (Negative) 



Internal Senrice Funds 

Internal Service Funds are utilized to finance and account for services and commodities furnished by a 
designated department to other departments within the City. 

Vehide Maintenance Fund 

This fund is utilized to account for the cost of automotive and other motorized equipment of the City. The 
acquisition cost of new or upgraded equipment is financed through user departments, and the asset value is 
simultaneously contributed to the Vehicle Maintenance Fund. The cost of replacement of existing equipment 
is financed through funded depreciation charges. 

Building Maintenance Fund 

This fund is utilized to account for the cost of providing custodial and building maintenance services to the 
various departments. The departments are charged for these services based upon the total square footage 
of each area. Capital assets constructed by the Building Maintenance Department are charged to the various 
departmen& upon the completion of the project. 

Self - Insurance Fund 

To account for the City's limited self-insurance program, wherein all funds are assessed charges based on 
damage claims accrued and on allocated proration of insurance premiums. 










































































